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Better Aligned with the Audit Regulatory Regime Worldwide
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In the ever changing and globalising environment, keeping abreast of

FRC =R the times and aligning ourselves with other international cities are the
Better Alignad with keys to success. Hong Kong, as an international financial center, is
the Audit Regulatory Regime

Worldwide connected to the world as always. On the regulatory side, we hope to

- build on the proposed new audit regulatory regime to align Hong Kong
with the global regulatory world, so that we can be benchmarked against
international standards and practices. The aim is to enable Hong Kong
to be eligible for membership of the International Forum of Independent
Audit Regulators (IFIAR) and be recognised as European Commission
(EC) equivalent.

Working in the public interest, the FRC will continue to actively participate
in bringing the reform process to fruition and better align Hong Kong with
the audit regulatory regime worldwide.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EREHRE

“ The FRC has worked and will continue to

work to achieve an audit regulatory regime

SRR e

AR L - 5

The year 2017 marks the 10th anniversary of the FRC. These are exciting
and challenging times to be part of an organisation at the forefront of
regulatory reform, and | am honoured to have been reappointed for a third
term as Chairman of the FRC. | would like to take this opportunity to restate
my full commitment to upholding the core values of the FRC, which include
independence and impartiality, accountability and transparency, integrity
and proficiency.

Having around 2,000 listed entities with a market capitalisation of
approximately HK$26 trillion, Hong Kong is recognised globally as a major
international financial centre. With such a status, the global investing
community rightly expects that Hong Kong’s audit regulatory regime
should be consistent with commonly adopted international standards and
practices. The era of “self regulation” for the audit profession among major
jurisdictions now belongs firmly to the past, and our audit regulatory regime
should be independent of the profession.

The benefit of a jurisdiction having independent audit oversight should not
be underestimated. It promotes high quality audit practices and enhances
investor confidence in financial reporting, thus providing better protection for
investors worldwide. It also supports the globalisation of financial markets
and fosters economic growth by facilitating cross-border investments.
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which is independent of the profession, adopts
international best practice and in line with other
major capital markets worldwide.
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For various reasons, Hong Kong has lagged behind in this important global
development. In recent years, the FRC has tirelessly advocated for a
fundamental reform that would bring the Hong Kong audit regulatory regime
into alignment with international best practice and enable it to achieve
international recognition in this regard. It is worth briefly recapping our
initiatives over the past four years to keep the momentum for audit regulatory
reform going, and to help bring the reform process to where it is today — on
the verge of the Government’s introduction of enabling legislation.

Audit regulatory reform

In 2013, the FRC commissioned a report on independent audit oversight
that identified the areas in which Hong Kong did not meet the requirements
for membership of the International Forum of Independent Audit Regulators
(IFIAR) and fell short of achieving regulatory equivalence with the
European Commission (EC). That report helped provide an impetus for the
Government to closely examine the existing audit regulatory regime in Hong
Kong, following which it published its “Proposals to Improve the Regulatory
Regime for Listed Entity Auditors” for public consultation. In June 2015
the Government published its consultation conclusions, which took into
account feedback received from the public including the FRC’s own written
submission. Under the proposals and conclusions, the FRC will become
Hong Kong’s audit oversight body, vested with direct powers of inspection,
investigation and discipline with regard to auditors of listed entities. The FRC
will also be vested with oversight power over the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (HKICPA) in relation to registration, the setting
of standards in professional ethics, auditing and assurance, and the setting
of continuing professional development requirements for auditors of listed
entities.

The global audit regulatory environment has continued to evolve. In order
to keep abreast of international norms and expectations, in October 2016
the FRC published an Update on Independent Audit Oversight Report
(the 2016 Report). The 2016 Report shows clearly that an audit regulator
should be operationally independent of the audit profession in the exercise
of its functions and powers, and its funding should not be subject to undue
influence by the profession.

Recently, the EU has strengthened the governance requirement for audit
regulators. For the purpose of gaining EC equivalence, the governing
body of an audit regulator must be comprised solely of non-practitioners —
identified as persons who in the previous three years have not carried out
statutory audits or been employed by or associated with an audit firm.
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The 2016 Report reiterates the fact that audit regulators of major 2016FMEEH T T EAER  PINEEEER
jurisdictions such as the United Kingdom and the United States all have  FVERiTEEEHE - WAFE BT BHEE : (1) B
three key characteristics; they are (1) independent of the profession and %5 - W FHEE V%ﬁlﬁﬂiﬂ1 EERE QBUE
have authority over auditors of listed entities; (2) members of IFIAR; and (3) in  :TEEEHERERIESE : RQ)FTABMNEESH
compliance with the EC requirements. Currently, 41 jurisdictions around the — E&RE o IBE2BRHE ﬁ41 BRLE R EE
world are IFIAR members and are recognised by the EC as having regulatory  (TEEREREHEBHEE  HAERNEZESR
equivalence. AHEEEEMEN -

We firmly believe that there are no impediments to Hong Kong joining the ~ ANBE(Z - 8 B EMERE Al AR I FEBR T AN
world of independent audit regulators in the near future, and meeting the A A2 BRIE L %u‘#%***éT%EU*Tﬁ% WAFA

requirements for both IFIAR membership and EC equivalence. In this way, BYEEERERERENEEERNIBIMNEE
Hong Kong will become integrally connected with the audit regulatory Q%E—Iﬁ&éﬁ%ﬁ’]%ﬁm Eﬁtl T BEGE]H
regime worldwide, and stand alongside other capital markets at the forefront iﬁlEl’J%E EEGIEED - MR ERESE

%T

Financial
R ‘ Reporting Council
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of global audit regulatory best practice. #HIMATL - BHEMERNTIZER °

Dr John Poon, Chairman and Mr Paul F. Winkelmann, CEO, hosted a press briefing for the Update on Independent Audit
Oversight Report in October 20186, together with Mr David Barnes from Deloitte LLP.

FEEEPE L RITRAESERESES - A Deloitte LLP #JDavid Barnes e R 2016 F 10 A LB I BT EEE N B ME THEE
e .
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Effective governance and operational excellence

The support | have received from Council members, members of the
Honorary Advisory Panel and the Financial Reporting Review Panel
(FRRP) and other lay members of FRC committees has been immense.
These members are all well respected in their respective fields, and have
played important roles in ensuring excellence across our operations. Apart
from providing valuable advice on specific cases, the members of the
Honorary Advisory Panel have also contributed to various FRC committees,
where they have shared their expertise and independent views. Their
unwavering support, exceptional professionalism and firm guidance have
contributed greatly to the success and achievement of the FRC. This
“check and balance” framework will remain an essential component of our
governance culture, embedded at the heart of our activities as our roles and
responsibilities expand.

In addition, it has been my great pleasure over the years to have worked
with colleagues of exceptional talent and dedication. We have in place a
team of highly committed staff and experienced professionals. This team will
need to be expanded to ensure that we remain capable and competent in
discharging our statutory responsibilities professionally, and are able to meet
public expectations of efficiency and effectiveness when our responsibilities
broaden as a result of the reform.

Multi-level collaboration

Fostering close communication with our counterparts and stakeholders
has always been an important focus of our activities. Locally, the FRC has
continued holding its regular liaison meetings with other regulators in Hong
Kong, at which all parties have updated each other on the status of referred
cases. These meetings also provided welcomed opportunities for discussing
regulatory issues of mutual interest, and for developing initiatives that
encourage better co-ordination.

At a cross-border level, the FRC has continued and will continue to hold
constructive discussions with the Ministry of Finance (MoF) and the China
Securities Regulatory Commission (CSRC) in the Mainland. Topics have
included regulators’ gaining access to audit working papers located in the
Mainland. We believe these discussions will lay the groundwork for updating
our Memoranda of Understanding to better suit our needs as a full-fledged
independent audit regulator.

On a wider scale, the FRC has actively participated in international meetings
and conferences. Globalisation requires an audit regulator to think globally,
and one of the best ways of doing this is to communicate, coordinate and
cooperate closely with similar international organisations. Becoming an
IFIAR member will enable us to share experiences and practices, learn from
other international audit regulators, and foster cooperation among relevant
members globally.
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Appreciations

On 31 March 2016, Mr Mark Dickens retired as the FRC’s Chief Executive
Officer. | would like to take this opportunity to express my appreciation for
his valuable contribution during his tenure. | would also like to welcome Mr
Paul F. Winkelmann, our new CEO, who is no stranger to the profession. He
assumed the leadership role with passion on 1 April 2016.

Three new Convenors and two new members were appointed to the FRRP
in 2016. Apart from welcoming the new members on board, | would like to
express my heartfelt appreciation to both the ongoing and recently retired
members of the FRRP for their immense contributions.

My profound thanks also go to our 20 Honorary Advisers for their enormous
contributions to the effective and efficient operations of the FRC.

There has been no change in the Council’s membership, with four members
having been re-appointed for another two-year term to 30 November 2018.
| truly value the impartiality and independence of mind offered by Council
members, and | would like to thank them for their continuous support, for
their contributions, and for their unflagging commitment to the FRC.

Council members for 2016.
2016 FMB S EMRBKE °
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Looking ahead

I would like to end by reiterating the clear expectations of the global investing
community, i.e. that the Hong Kong audit regulatory regime should be
independent of the audit profession, adopt international best practice, and
be in line with other major capital markets worldwide.

To meet these expectations, reform is essential. The legislative framework
should enable Hong Kong to become eligible for membership of IFIAR and
to be recognised as having regulatory equivalence with the EC. We believe
that this is in the best interests of the investing public and will strengthen
Hong Kong as a major international financial centre, as well as better aligning
it with other major capital markets.

With support from the Council and the Honorary Advisory Panel, coupled
with the efforts of our dedicated and professional staff, | am confident that
we have laid a solid foundation to build on. It is a foundation that will enable
us to competently tackle any future challenges that may arise.
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Dr John Poon, BBS, JP
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Chairman
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9 March 2017
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S REPORT

THRBHRS ‘6
2016 was an active year for the FRC. We focused

on enhancing our operational efficiency, continued
our support for the audit regulatory reform and
fostered our collaboration with other regulators. We
will continue to work on these three priorities in the

coming year.

EXMBEALEER -

This is my first report since taking up the position of CEO on 1 April 2016. |
am pleased to report that we have had a very active year.

The FRC’s mission is to be a facilitator in enhancing the quality of financial
reporting in Hong Kong, so that the global investment community can
continue to place full trust in the Hong Kong capital market. | believe that a
primary element in achieving this mission is having the ability to work with
preparers and auditors as part of a process designed to constantly improve
quality and keep up to date with changes in financial reporting expectations.
In this regard | welcome the anticipated changes in the auditor regulatory
regime, which will give us the opportunity to work with auditors through the
inspection process. We will also be able to contribute to the development of
relevant standards on auditing and ethics through the proposed oversight
process.

Financial Reporting Council Annual Report 2016
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Operations

We received and handled an unprecedented number of pursuable
complaints in 2016. After averaging 25 a year over the previous five years,
the number of complaints rose to a total of 118 this year. During the year
we completed 11 investigations, the highest number since we commenced
operations. We also initiated 18 investigations during the year, a substantial
increase over the previous year when 11 investigations were initiated.
Further discussion and analysis of our operations can be found in the
“Management and Operations Review” section on pages 54 to 77 of this
annual report.

In order to manage this increased level of activity effectively, we needed
to focus our resources on enhancing the efficiency with which we
handled complaints, investigations and enquiries. With the approval of our
Operations Oversight Committee, we made several amendments to our
operations manual. In particular, we streamlined our complaints handling
process so that we could better meet our goal of evaluating complaints
within three months of receiving them. This means that we are now able to
evaluate each complaint more quickly to decide whether an investigation
is warranted, an enhancement that has led to a rise in the number of
investigations initiated during the year.

With regard to investigations, we have re-examined how we draft our reports
and findings. Further efficiencies in the area of investigations are planned for
2017.

We also reconsidered our financial statements review programme. For 2016
we revised the programme to introduce “filters” to more effectively identify
areas of likely non-compliance and/or irregularity. The revised filters focus on
the following attributes:

° Companies with change of auditors due to disagreements or
unresolved issues;

° Companies whose audit firm is small in relation to the complexity of
the audit;

° Financial statements with alleged non-compliance with accounting
requirements and/or auditing or reporting irregularities based on
media reports/companies subject to intervention by HKEX;

° Financial statements with significant prior period errors suggesting
investors relying on prior period financial statements could have been
misled; and

° Financial statements with modified auditor’s reports.

Our work on modified auditors reports is now no longer a separate exercise.
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S REPORT (continued)
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Up to now, we have relied on the support of external reviewers in operating
this programme. | am very grateful for their dedicated work in this regard, all
of which has been undertaken on an honorary basis. Having regard to the
intent of the programme, and in order to better achieve independence of the
programme from the profession, 2017 will see us change to make this a fully
in-house programme, with the recruitment of additional staff.

Regulatory Reform

In line with our theme for this year’s annual report, we have spent a
considerable amount of time on dealing with developments in the area
of audit regulatory reform. In October, we held a press briefing which
aroused significant public interest and attracted positive media coverage.
The Independent Audit Oversight Reform Committee (IAORC) and its sub-
committee held several discussions on key matters which the government
proposes to introduce in the bill for audit regulatory reform. In addition, | and
one of my directors visited the United Kingdom Financial Reporting Council
(UK FRC) to gain a more comprehensive understanding of their structure
and operations.

| very much look forward to the introduction of the bill. The FRC is firmly
committed to supporting it through to its successful implementation.

Regulator Outreach

We have also continued to reach out to, and interact with, other regulators in
Hong Kong, China and internationally. We have continued to hold quarterly
liaison meetings with the SFC, HKEx and the HKICPA, at which we share
information regarding common findings and issues and discuss how we can
improve on our responses collectively.

Financial Reporting Council Annual Report 2016
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In November 2016, the CEO of the FRC gave a presentation at the annual
joint financial reporting forum organized by the HKICPA, HKEx and FRC.
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We have also continued to maintain dialogue with the Ministry of Finance
(MoF) on our access to audit working papers in the Mainland. These
meetings have been important in achieving across-the-board efficiencies in
enforcing regulations in the Hong Kong capital market.

To keep abreast of developments globally, | and my Deputy CEO, Ms
Wincey Lam, attended a roundtable discussion in April 2016 hosted by
the Malaysian Institute of Accountants, the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants (ACCA), and the International Auditing and Assurance
Standards Board (IAASB). The discussion focused on the topics of
professional scepticism, quality control and group audits. We shared
our insights and experience in relation to enhancing audit quality with
representatives from regulators, practitioners, professional bodies and
academia from across the Asia Pacific region.

We enhanced our relationship with the UK FRC through our visit to them and
through other interactions. In addition, we received a visit from the Public
Company Accounting Oversight Board which enabled us to gain a better
understanding of some of their procedures under their specific regulatory
regime.

We also met with the IAASB and the ACCA Global Regulatory Team. These
meetings were useful opportunities to share views and experience in relation
to global regulatory developments and the regulatory environment in Hong
Kong.

In April 2016, the CEO and the Deputy CEO of the FRC attended the
roundtable discussion hosted by the Malaysian Institute of Accountants,
the ACCA and the IAASB in Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia.
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In May 2016, the CEO of the FRC gave a presentation on “New
Auditor Reporting Standard” to a group of chief executives
of enterprises from Mainland China at a seminar hosted by
PricewaterhouseCoopers.
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S REPORT (ontinueq)
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Communication with the Investing Public

We have continued to work to enhance the transparency of our operations
as much as possible, and to improve our communication channels with
stakeholders and the investing public. This year, as every year, the FRC also
reported on its work and answered questions from legislators at a meeting
of the Panel on Financial Affairs of the Legislative Council.

Financial Review

Our four funding parties — the Companies Registry Trading Fund, HKEX,
the HKICPA and the SFC - provided us with HK$29.36M of funding
(2015: HK$27.96M). Total expenditure amounted to HK$27.33M (2015:
HK$23.21M). The surplus for the year was HK$2.88M (2015: HK$5.88M).

Staff costs accounted for HK$23.44M or 86% of total expenses (2015:
HK$21.02M or 90% of total expenses). This year we incurred additional
costs for the audit oversight research and related expenses of HK$2M
(2015: HK$0.5M).

Resources

As mentioned in last year’s report, two new professional staff members
joined us in the first quarter of 2016. We are currently in the process of
recruiting three more professionals to help address our workload. This will
bring our total complement of staff to 25, of which 16 will be professional
staff.

In order to cultivate our existing talent pool, we continued to organise
technical training for our professional staff designed to assist them in staying
up-to-date with accounting and auditing standards and keeping their
investigation skills sharp.
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Chairman

ESE

Members

D]

Dr John Poon, BBS, JP (re-appointment
effective 15 December 2016; term expires on 14
December 2018)

Dr Poon is a solicitor and a non-executive
director of the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Authority. He was formerly the deputy
chairman of Esprit Holdings Limited until July
2008. Dr Poon served as a lay member of the
council of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants from December 2005 to
December 2011 during which he was also
the chairman of Professional Qualifications
Accountability Board (2009-2011) and the
chairman of Governance Review Task Force
in 2011. He was a member of the Standing
Committee on Company Law Reform (2003-
2009) and the Board of Review (Inland Revenue
Ordinance) (2004-2010).

Mr Chan Tze Ching, BBS, JP (re-appointment
effective 1 December 2016 on the nomination of
the Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited;
term expires on 30 November 2018)

Mr Chan is a senior advisor of The Bank of East
Asia and CVC Capital Partners. Mr Chan is a
veteran banker, with over 30 years of banking
experience covering Hong Kong, Japan, Taiwan
and Mainland China. He currently serves on the
boards of various listed companies, NGOs and
government statutory bodies.
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Mr Wilson Fung (re-appointment effective 1
December 2016 on the nomination of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(HKICPA); term expires on 30 November 2018)

Mr Fung has over 17 years of experience in
auditing in Hong Kong and the United Kingdom.
Having worked for Jardine Matheson for 21
years, he retired from the company as its group
financial controller in September 2014. He is
a fellow member of both the HKICPA and the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants,
and a member of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales. He was
elected as president of the HKICPA in 2010.
Mr Fung is the founding president of Hong
Kong Business Accountants Association, the
chairman of Hong Kong Dance Company, a
member of the Town Planning Board, a member
of Anti-Money Laundering and Counter-Terrorist
Financing (Financial Institutions) Review Tribunal,
a member of Hong Kong Productivity Council,
a member of the West Kowloon Cultural
District Authority Board, a member of the
Audit Committee of Hong Kong University of
Science and Technology and a director of the
Urban Renewal Fund. He was appointed to the
Financial Reporting Review Panel of the FRC as
a Convenor from July 2007 to July 2013.

Mr Nicholas Sallnow-Smith (re-appointment
effective 1 December 2015; term expires on 30
November 2017)

Mr Sallnow-Smith has been chairman of The
Lion Rock Institute of Hong Kong since April
2016. He has over 40 years of experience in the
finance and treasury field in the United Kingdom
and Asia, and has extensive knowledge of the
property investment/ management industry
in Hong Kong. He was previously chairman
of the Board of the REIT Manager Link Asset
Management Limited from 2007-2016. He
was chief executive of Hongkong Land Limited
between 2000 and 2007. He is an independent
non-executive director of Wynn Macau, Limited,
UCP Plc and Aviva Life Insurance Company
Limited (Hong Kong). He has been actively
involved in public service and is an executive
committee member of the Hong Kong Youth
Arts Foundation, a member of the Council of the
Treasury Markets Association, and a councilor of
Foundation for The Arts and Music in Asia Ltd.
He is also a member of the Board of Governors
of Hong Kong Philharmonic Society Ltd. and
a director of East Asian History of Science
Foundation Ltd.
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Mr Sin Chung Kai, SBS, JP (re-appointment
effective 1 December 2015; term expires on 30
November 2017)

Mr Sin was a Legislative Councillor representing
the geographical constituency of Hong Kong
Island from 2012 to 2016. He served as a board
director of the West Kowloon Cultural District
Authority and the chairman of its remuneration
committee from 2008 to 2014. Mr Sin served
as a board member of the Hong Kong Tourism
Board from 2008 to 2014, a member of the
Council for Sustainable Development from 2009
to 2013, a member of the Greater Pearl River
Delta Business Council from 2009 to 2013 and
a member of the Operations Review Committee
and Witness Protection Review Board Panel
of the Independent Commission Against
Corruption from 2006 to 2012. He served as a
member of the Housing Authority from 2001 to
2009 and a board director of the Hong Kong
Mortgage Corporation Limited from 1999 to
2009.

Mr David Stannard (re-appointment effective 1
December 2015; term expires on 30 November
2017)

Mr Stannard is a corporate lawyer based in
Hong Kong. He was executive director in
charge of the Corporate Finance Division of
the Securities and Futures Commission from
January 1999 to September 2001, a member
of the Listing Committees of the Main Board
and the Growth Enterprise Market of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited from 2003 to
2008 and a member of the Standing Committee
on Company Law Reform from 2003 to 2010.
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Mr Wong Kai Man, BBS, JP (re-appointment
effective 1 December 2016 on the nomination
of the Securities and Futures Commission; term
expires on 30 November 2018)

Mr Wong was a non-executive director of the
SFC (2009-May 2015) and a member of the
Listing Committee (1999-2003) of the Growth
Enterprise Market of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited. He was an audit partner of
PricewaterhouseCoopers, Hong Kong before
his retirement in June 2005. He has served/
is serving as an independent non-executive
director of several companies listed in Hong
Kong. Mr Wong has also served on advisory
committees and statutory bodies established
by the Government of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region, boards of charities and
councils of universities.

Dr Kelvin Wong, JP (appointment effective 1
December 2015; term expires on 30 November
2017)

Dr Wong is an executive director and deputy
managing director of COSCO SHIPPING Ports
Limited (formerly known as COSCO Pacific
Limited). He is also an independent non-
executive director of seven listed companies in
Hong Kong. He is the immediate past chairman
of The Hong Kong Institute of Directors, a
non-executive director of the Securities and
Futures Commission, the chairman of the
Investor Education Centre and a member
of the Operations Review Committee of
Independent Commission Against Corruption.
A former member of Main Board and GEM
Listing Committee of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited, the Standing Committee
on Company Law Reform and the Corruption
Prevention Advisory Committee of Independent
Commission Against Corruption.
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Ms Eirene Yeung (re-appointment effective 1
December 2016; term expires on 30 November
2018)

Ms Yeung is a Member of the Executive
Committee and the Company Secretary of
Cheung Kong Property Holdings Limited. She is
also the Company Secretary and the Alternate
Director to the Group Managing Director of
Cheung Kong Infrastructure Holdings Limited;
the Company Secretary of CK Life Sciences
Int’l., (Holdings) Inc.; and a Non-Executive
Director of ARA Asset Management (Fortune)
Limited, which manages Fortune Real Estate
Investment Trust, a real estate investment trust
listed in Hong Kong and Singapore.

Ms Yeung is a member of the SFC (HKEC
Listing) Committee of the SFC of Hong Kong,
a member of the Listing Committee of the Main
Board and Growth Enterprise Market of the
SEHK, a member of the Advisory Committee on
Corruption of the ICAC and Vice Chairman of
the General Committee of The Chamber of Hong
Kong Listed Companies. Ms Yeung is a solicitor
of the High Court of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region and of the Senior Courts
of England and Wales.

Ms Ada Chung, JP (ex-officio) (appointment
effective 1 October 2007)

Ms Chung is the Registrar of Companies. As
a representative of the Financial Secretary,
Ms Chung is an ex-officio council member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. She is also a fellow of the Hong
Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries and the
Hong Kong Institute of Directors. Before her
appointment as the Registrar, she was a Deputy
Law Officer of the Department of Justice. Ms
Chung qualifies as a certified public accountant
and a barrister-at-law.
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Mr Paul F. Winkelmann (ex-officio)
(appointment effective 1 April 2016; term expires
on 31 March 2019)

Mr Winkelmann is the Chief Executive
Officer of the Financial Reporting Council.
He has rich experience in the accounting
profession. He was the partner-in-charge of
PricewaterhouseCoopers’ Risk Management
and Quality team in Greater China from 2002
to 2014 and was the president of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(HKICPA) in 2009. He also served as the
Chairman of the Financial Reporting Standards
Committee of the HKICPA from 2004 to
2009 which oversaw the full convergence of
Hong Kong’s accounting standards with the
international standards. He was a member of
the Operations Oversight Committee of the FRC
from August 2013 to March 2016.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
HIEER

The mission of the FRC is to uphold the quality of financial reporting of listed
entities in Hong Kong by exercising its statutory powers under the Financial
Reporting Council Ordinance (Cap 588) (FRCO).

The FRC is committed to high standards of corporate governance and
operates within a comprehensive framework of values and guidelines that
emphasises integrity, proficiency, independence, impartiality, accountability
and transparency. To facilitate effective operations and management of
the organisation, the FRC has adopted the best practices outlined by the
International Federation of Accountants and has in place a clearly defined
governing structure, high standards of conduct, reliable internal control
procedures and appropriate checks and balances.

Organisation Structure
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The Council

The FRC is governed by its Members, who operate as a Council. A
significant majority of Council Members, including the Chairman, are lay
persons, i.e., non-accountants. All members are independent of the audit
profession. This ensures the Council’s independence in carrying out its
functions.

The FRC’s Chief Executive Officer (CEQO) is appointed by the Chief
Executive of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region (HKSAR) on
the recommendation of the Council. As at 31 December 2016, there were
11 Members on the Council. Three of these 11 members are nominated
by Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited (HKEx), the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (HKICPA) and the Securities and
Futures Commission (SFC) respectively. The Registrar of Companies or her
representative, and the FRC’s CEO, are ex-officio members.

Council members are appointed for a two year term which is renewable.
Procedures are in place to ensure an adequate rotation of members on an
annual basis.

The CEO and his staff manage the operations of the FRC and they report
back to Council in accordance with the provisions of the procedural manual.
On their part, Council gives directives to the CEO and his staff, and ensures
the organisation’s statutory functions are being performed effectively.

Members of the Council are legally bound to declare any interest they may
have in a case. Council Members present during deliberations or decision-
making by HKEXx, the HKICPA or the SFC relating to cases to be referred to
the FRC are considered as having an interest in that case. In accordance
with the FRCO, Council Members having such an interest may not (a) be
present during any deliberation by the Council, (b) take part in any decision
of the Council, or (c) be given any documents related to the case.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (continued)
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Council Meetings

The Council meets once every two months and holds additional meetings as
and when necessary. The financial statements of the Council and progress
reports on cases are also submitted to the Council for review at meetings.
In 2016, the Council held seven meetings, all of which were conducted in
accordance with the provisions of the FRCO.

Attendance at Council meetings in 2016 was as follows:

MEERBNESE
HsERBKNESWERARIT—RE%E  TEKE
ZEREING® - AR HHREREREERS
BEReg HRE - UHKBER - ABKER2016F
%&ifﬂtu\mi - MATA & 9IE R IS ER /D
TER (51 VA (6 STt

BISERBKER 2016 FHEHLERMT
Meetings attended/held

SREEBIRE
Dr John Poon, BBS, JP (Chairman) EEBPEL  AEFHEE  AFHLT(ER) 7/7
Mr Chan Tze Ching, BBS, JP FBRFIEAE - IREFEE - KFat 5/7
Mr Wilson Fung BIEL A 7/7
Mr Nicholas Sallnow-Smith **JEEH pitast 6/7
Mr Sin Chung Kai, SBS, JP BiELEA  IREFEE - KF@T 7/7
Mr David Stannard MR A 6/7
Mr Wong Kai Man, BBS, JP ERESA  AEFAEE - KFa+ 6/7
Dr Kelvin Wong, JP BAHEL  KFEHLT 5/7
Ms Eirene Yeung BiRZ it 3/7
Ms Ada Chung, JP or her representative (ex-officio) BT + K FMITERK (EAKE) 77
Mr Paul F. Winkelmann (CEO) (ex-officio)' s R4 (1 E&%ﬁﬁ)(”‘%ﬁﬁzﬁ)* 4/4
Mr Mark Dickens, JP (CEO) (ex-officio)? WENBEAE - KL (FTHREH) (BRKE)? 2/3

U Appointed as CEO with effect from 1 April 2016.
2 Retired as CEO on 31 March 2016.

The average attendance rate at meetings was 84%.

Pursuant to the FRCO, the Chief Executive of the HKSAR may appoint
temporary members to the FRC to serve on a rotating basis with respect
to cases whereby the Council is not able to meet the statutory quorum in
relation to matters in which members had disclosed their interests. During
2016, the following persons were temporary members of the FRC:

Mr Vincent Duhamel
Mr Edward Kwan, MH
Mr Michael Scales

Mr MT Shum, SBS
Ms Anna Wong '

Prof Wong Tak Jun 2

Mr Vincent Duhamel and Mr Edward Kwan, MH were each involved in eight
cases at the Council meetings held in 2016. Mr Michael Scales and Mr MT
Shum, SBS were each involved in five cases, while Prof Wong Tak Jun was
involved in three cases.

U Appointed with effect from 1 December 2016.
2 Retired as temporary member with effect from 30 November 2016.

The in-house General Counsel attends all Council meetings to ensure
adequate legal advice is available to Council members. Minutes are kept by
the Administration Manager who is the appointed secretary of the meetings.
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Council Committees MHERRBETZE

The Council has five committees, the responsibilities of which are described B EEHRB TRAMEE S - H RS o 5%

below. These committees meet as necessary, on a periodic basis. Each SZE2BTFHITRE T S
committee operates according to its own terms of reference. SEAR R B S EIEE o

4\\ \

&t = =2 4
TE% - BLEY

Each Committee has a majority of Council members and at least one JZEBE@WNALHIKEHAMBKEREKE @ B
Honorary Advisor to ensure appropriate checks and balances across the  BiE&d—{4% %?Eﬁf'ﬁ AR BREEGRE
operations of the FRC. The Operations Oversight Committee also has other — HI&IE 5 o kLo - BIEERZE @A T T
members appointed as lay persons. ATHRKE -

Corporate Communications Committee (CCC) HEENEES

Back row (from left): Mr Sin Chung Kai, SBS, JP, Ms Eirene Yeung, Ms Ada Chung, JP and Mr Michael Scales
ek (7o) « B AL REFESE - AT  BRZLt  BBRLLT K FHLTREKSEE

Front row (from left): Mr Paul F. Winkelmann (ex-officio) and Mr Chan Tze Ching, BBS, JP (Chairman)

AiEE (o) - FEREE (ERAKRE) RRFBEL @ IEFRE - KPME(EE)

Terms of reference Egégﬁ@

e To formulate corporate communications policies and strategies to Hl EMIBEABER RER - MRS EREHH
increase publicity about the work of the FRC. TiE-

e To oversee the implementation of corporate communications o ESBAFKEZEMNEBEENRENRIT
strategies approved by the Council, and to utilize appropriate NREBEEN RSB (FFER - - EF
communications tools, such as press statements, publications, WA EES) BEREMINEER -

electronic communications, and conferences, to reach the media and
external parties.

e Torecommend an annual promotion plan and budget to the Council. o [AXBKERTFESETEIREE -
e To oversee the review and updating of FRC website layouts and o EEFBARNHEER;ILEAR @ /IMEF -
contents, printed brochures, promotional materials, and other EEER REM TR EHMES

publications of the FRC.
e To oversee publicity campaigns launched from time to time by the o EEAXRBTEHERNSELD o
FRC.
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CORPO RATE GOVERNANCE (continued)
BEERw

Summary of the work of the CCC in 2016

Advised on the 2017 Corporate Communications Plan.

Reviewed the draft 2015 annual report of the FRC for the Council’s
approval.

Advised on the selection of vendors for the 2016 FRC Annual Report.

Vetted the promotional materials of the FRC, including its eNews and
online advertisements.

Advised on public relations and media strategies for the FRC,
including the press briefing for the launch of the Update on
Independent Audit Oversight Report.

Attendance at CCC meetings in 2016 was as follows:

HIBEFZESSR2016 FH L IEHE

12017 F OB EGT B R s -
FH2016 F U BERBFRNETR - AEHA
BRBEL -

5t 2016 F B FS I ¥R 5 F iR BRI 2 Bl e it
ZHUBERBNEEEN  BREMBER
BEFMAIEHLEES

T B 75 B R R B L B R T (SR B D T 4R
HER BRERBIUEAEENENREM
BRNEHREN S

WEEALZEeKEN 2016 FHEH L FRMT ¢

Meetings attended/held

SRAE T BITRE
Mr Chan Tze Ching, BBS, JP (Chairman) PRFBUEAE - ERFEE - KAF@HL(ERF) 3/3
Ms Ada Chung, JP BRI  KFEt 3/3
Mr Michael Scales i N 1/3
Mr Sin Chung Kai, SBS, JP BEEE  BREFEE - KFHL 2/3
Ms Eirene Yeung GiRE T 1/3
Mr Paul F. Winkelmann (CEO) (ex-officio)' RS A (FTHARE) (BAKE )" 2/2
Mr Mark Dickens, JP (CEO) (ex-officio) 2 IENBI A - KMt (FTEAREL) (B AR E )2 11
Average attendance rate T fE = 72%

1

2

()

Appointed with effect from 1 April 2016.
Term expired on 31 March 2016.
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Finance Committee (FC)

BREES

Back row (from left): Mr Wilson Fung, Dr PM Kam and Mr David Stannard

&EE (i) : IBRERAE - HEXE L RAEREEE

Front row (from left): Mr Paul F. Winkelmann (ex-officio) and Dr Kelvin Wong, JP (Chairman)

AIEE(ERR) - BERAL (BAKE) RERREL - AP (EF)

Terms of reference

To review the FRC’s treasury, internal control, and financial and risk
management policies and strategies.

To approve tenders for procurement with an estimated value
exceeding HK$500,000 (other than legal services relating to the
vetting of investigation or enquiry reports).

To advise the Council on the short, medium and long term financial
implications of the FRC’s strategic plans.

To review and make recommendations to the Council on the FRC’s
annual budget.

To review the FRC’s draft annual financial statements before
submission to the Council.

To provide advice on the future funding model of the FRC once the
independent audit oversight reform proposal is finalised.

Summary of the work of the FC in 2016

Considered the draft financial statements for the 2015 financial year.
Considered the group medical insurance for the FRC.

Considered 2017 estimates of the income and expenditure.
Considered the estimates of operational costs for 2017 to 2020 in
preparation for taking up additional statutory functions.

BiEsE

FERARAER - RBEDE I SA K B 75 B B
IR R MR R -

HAE St S FREB 50 B TMERBIRE (B R
EHREIENRSHERERBRIN) -

MA BRI IEFT IR - hH KRR BB
TE MARBKEREER
EHARNFEERE  UAABKERES
Ho
ERARFEMBHRENESR L
RBUBAEERERZRIRRER
HABERESEANER -

BIBZESSR2016 FHITEHHZ

EH 2015 FHRFENTEHREER -
ERVISERBNEEEERR

FEH 2017 EMRA RS HTEE -

B AEGREEINETEREMIERFN 2017
FE2020FMEERZTEE -
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (continued)
BEERw

28]

Attendance at FC meetings in 2016 was as follows: MHEEEKRER 2016 FNERLFEERNAT :

Meetings attended/held

SRLEBTRE

Dr Kelvin Wong, JP (Chairman) ' EARMEL  KF@aLT(EF)! 3/3
Mr Wilson Fung RHRELAE 3/3
Dr PM Kam ! HigxEL! 1/3
Mr David Stannard ' SiERE A 1/3
Mr Paul F. Winkelmann (CEO) (ex-officio) 2 BRER LA (TTEER) (EARKE )2 2/2
Mr Mark Dickens, JP (CEO) (ex-officio) ® WEBEL - KFaLt (FTHAER) (BAKE)S 1/1
Average attendance rate T E = 73%

' Appointed with effect from 1 January 2016. T R2016F1 A1 BEERE -

2 Appointed with effect from 1 April 2016. 2 20164 A1 BEZMF -

8 Term expired on 31 March 2016. s {FHIRR20164F 3 A 31 BiEim °
Independent Audit Oversight Reform Committee (IAORC) BYBTTEEREZES

Back row (from left): Mr Eugene Fung, SC, Dr Kelvin Wong, JP, Mr David Stannard, Mr Sin Chung Kai, SBS, JP and Mr Chew Fook Aun
BPE () : IFEELL - ERANERD - EREIEL - ATMLT - SEfekE B EEE  REFIEE  ATFATRARTEE
Front row (from left): Mr Paul F. Winkelmann (ex-officio), Dr John Poon, BBS, JP (Chairman) and Mr Nicholas Sallnow-Smith

AigE () : BEREREA (BAKE) BEBEL - EHESE - AT (7)) REKALE

Financial Reporting Council Annual Report 2016



Terms of reference

To provide advice to the FRC and the staff on matters related to
the reform of auditor oversight systems in Hong Kong (the Reform),
including but not limited to the registration, inspection, investigation
and sanction of auditors.

To oversee the work of FRC staff in relation to the Reform, including
but not limited to the assumption of statutory powers for the
inspection of listed company auditors and the transition arrangements
relating to audit inspection and related legislative amendments; and
to ensure that the activities undertaken by the staff are in accordance
with the directives of the FRC and the agreed timeline.

To receive and consider regular progress reports from the staff on the
progress of the Reform.

To undertake specific tasks related to the Reform as required by the
FRC.

Summary of the work of the IAORC in 2016

Recommended the commissioning of and reviewed the Update on
Independent Audit Oversight Report.

Assisted in the preparation of the press briefing

Discussed issues relating to the Reform.

Attendance at IAORC meetings in 2016 was as follows:

B

s MEBBHEEHNENRFECE)EH W BFERA
PRAZBENEN - &% BAERES @ [
TREREETRESR -

. EEABNETHNEFEIOIM  BIEE
RRREEE K LA ARBETAET M -
B ERBE T RABIEET - I A
(RE TEMBA RIS NS EHEHRETT
f -

o HUWERESRB THAFEERRAEHEE R

=

o ERARBMENR  MITHREMRERBIE-

BUETEENEZEER 2016 FHTIFHE

s HMEMETBEUFRFEENENRERER
R BEZRE ©

s mPEHEEENERENE -

s HMAMEEEMEENENEH -

BUBAEENEEZEEKNER 2016 FNER LT
ES (NN
Meetings attended/held

SRAE T BITRE
Dr John Poon, BBS, JP (Chairman) EAEPAEL  REFEE - KA (EHE) 5/5
Mr Chew Fook Aun ' ISk e 4/5
Mr Eugene Fung, SC 2 TBRERB A - BIRAE2AM? 3/5
Mr Nicholas Sallnow-Smith ERIKER ST A 5/5
Mr Sin Chung Kai, SBS, JP BEEE  BEFAEE - KFEMHLT 3/5
Mr David Stannard AR 3/5
Dr Kelvin Wong, JP 2 BRAEL K Pt 5/5
Mr Paul F. Winkelmann (CEO) (ex-officio) ® R LA (FTHARE) (BAKE)?® 4/4
Mr Mark Dickens, JP (CEO) (ex-officio) * WENBE A - KT (FTEREEED) (BAKE ) 11
Average attendance rate T fE = 83%

Re-appointed with effect from 1 January 2016.
Appointed with effect from 1 January 2016.
Appointed with effect from 1 April 2016.

Term expired on 31 March 2016.

In addition, there were 2 sub-committee meetings during the year.

T R2016F1 A1 HBEERT -
2 R20164F1 A1 AEERE -

S R20164F4 A1 AEERT -

4 {THIR 20163 A 31 Hfgim °

S FERTET T MENEZE e R -

()
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (continued)
wisER

Operations Oversight Committee (OOC)

EIEEE

)
S5
A
pil]
2

Back row (from left): Mr Vincent Duhamel, Mr Wilson Fung, Mr Jamie Allen, Mr Kenneth Morrison and Mr Stephen Taylor

1BPE(ZfR) : MBS  IBRESLE - WEHHSELE - (5554 K Stephen Taylor £ 4

Front row (from left): Mr Nicholas Sallnow-Smith, Mr Paul F. Winkelmann (ex-officio), Mr Wong Kai Man, BBS, JP (Chairman) and Mr Chan Tze
Ching, BBS, JP

AIBE(ZE/) « ARJKBALE A - BIERAEE(BRKE) - ERELLE  HEFE

Terms of reference

()

To formulate policies, strategies, guidelines and procedures for the
operation of the FRC.

To provide advice to the FRC and its operational staff on technical and
business issues.

To consider the progress of enquiries, investigations, complaints and
reviews currently being dealt with by staff.

To consider enquiry reports approved by the Financial Reporting
Review Committee (FRRC) before the submission to the FRC.

To consider investigation reports approved by the Audit Investigation
Board before submission to the FRC.

To consider the recommendations in the complaint/review
assessment reports before submission to the FRC, and to endorse
those complaint/review assessment reports requiring no follow-up
action.

To consider follow-up actions in relation to the review of modified
auditors’ reports.

To consider and approve the recommendations made in the risk-
based review handling reports in relation to financial statements
selected for review under the risk-based financial statements review
programme.
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Summary of the work of the OOC in 2016 EBIEERZS 2R 2016 FHTERHE

e Considered the progress of enquiries, investigations, complaints, ¢ ZTEF& - #FHE - KF - BHUILELRTHERE
and reviews, and also the progress of financial statements review EHABFMEEREE R RS TIEE
programme and the review of modified auditors’ reports. g

e Considered 128 complaint handling and assessment reports and o i 128 DR FEIE R ERE - ARTHEH
seven review assessment reports. Al RS

e Considered 11 investigation reports and one enquiry report. o FHRUMAETHERIMERARS -

e Considered and approved amendments to the Operations Manual. o BHRLEMAIMEEFMIE -

Attendance at OOC meetings in 2016 was as follows: BEEERZE SN 2016 FNEZHHERNT ¢

Meetings attended/held

SRLE A BTRE

Mr Wong Kai Man, BBS, JP (Chairman) ERREE  WEFAEE - KA (EFE) 6/6
Mr Jamie Allen NHEBPEE 5/6
Mr Chan Tze Ching, BBS, JP PRFBUEAE - SEFIES - KP4t 3/6
Mr Vincent Duhamel MIZESSE A& 4/6
Mr Wilson Fung ! HRELAE 5/6
Mr Kenneth Morrison 2 XI5k AE2 3/4
Mr Nicholas Sallnow-Smith BRIKBR L AE 6/6
Mr Stephen Taylor Stephen Taylor 5t 4 5/6
Mr Paul F. Winkelmann (CEQ) (ex-officio) @ BEE R (TTBUARE) (B AR R ) 6/6
Mr Mark Dickens, JP (CEO) (ex-officio) * WEBEAE - KM (FTBARR) (BAKE ) 1/1
Average attendance rate T fE = 83%

1 Appointed with effect from 1 January 2016. T R2016F1 A1 BERE -

2 Appointed with effect from 1 June 2016. 2 R201656 A1 HERE -

8 Mr Winkelmann was an Honorary Advisor and a member of OOC before 2 £ R % A7 2016 4 B EITEAAEL AT © LHE(E

becoming the CEO of the FRC in 2016. LEERREEEREZERKE -
4 Term expired on 31 March 2016. 4 {THAR 201643 A 31 HfEim °

()
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CORPO RATE GOVERNANCE (continued)
wisER

Remuneration Committee (RC)

E eSS

Back row (from left): Mr Nicholas Sallnow-Smith, Ms Eirene Yeung and Mr Roger Best

BEE(LAE) : BROKBASEAE ~ B2 AT REMALE

Front row (from left): Mr Paul F. Winkelmann (ex-officio) and Dr John Poon, BBS, JP (Chairman)

AIBE(ZERR) « @ RALE (BAKE) RBEEBEL  AEHES - KFHL (ERF)

Terms of reference

To make recommendations to the Council on staffing, remuneration
and employment policies and strategies, including salary structure,
terms and conditions of employment, and staff fringe benefits.

To make recommendations to the Council on the annual pay
adjustment and the amount of variable compensation payable to
individual staff members.

To make recommendations to the Council on the amount of variable
compensation payable to the CEO.

To review the remuneration policy to ensure that it is consistent with all
applicable legal and regulatory requirements.

Summary of the work of the RC in 2016

()

Considered the recommendations concerning the award of
discretionary variable pay to the Deputy CEO for 2015.

Considered the recommendations for salary revision for staff in 2016.
Considered the performance appraisal of the CEO and the award of
discretionary variable pay for 2015.

Considered the report of the compensation and benefits
benchmarking study prepared by an independent consultant.
Considered the amendments to the Human Resources Policies and
Procedures Manual.
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Attendance at RC meetings in 2016 was as follows: FWNEE SN 2016 FH SR L EEAT ¢
Meetings attended/held
RLE A BITRE
Dr John Poon, BBS, JP (Chairman) EEAEL - ERFEE - AT (EFE) 3/3
Mr Roger Best, JP EOMRS A - KA 3/3
Mr Nicholas Sallnow-Smith BRIKBR L AE 3/3
Ms Eirene Yeung Tmike 2+ 3/3
Mr Paul F. Winkelmann (CEO) (ex-officio) R A (ITHEER) (BEAKE) ! 2/2
Mr Mark Dickens, JP (CEO) (ex-officio) 2 WEBEAE - KL (TR (BAKE)? 1/1
Average attendance rate T H fE = 100%
T Appointed with effect from 1 April 2016. T R2016%F 4 A1 HEZE -
2 Term expired on 31 March 2016. 2 {FHIRR 20163 A31 HEM °
Operations E1E
Enquiry - Financial Reporting Review Panel (FRRP) and - ERETEEEANREES
Committee (FRRC)

In cases where the FRC believes there may be non-compliance in relation
to a listed entity, the Council may appoint a FRRC to conduct an enquiry.
The committee consists of a Panel Convenor as Chairman, and at least four
other members of the Financial Reporting Review Panel.

Under the powers vested in it under section 43 of the FRCO, the FRRC may
require relevant persons to produce records and documents and provide
information and explanations so it can conduct an enquiry.

Members of the FRRP are appointed by the Chief Executive of the HKSAR
in consultation with the Council. As at 31 December 2016, the FRRP had
48 members, including eight Convenors. They are appointed based on their
experience in accounting, auditing, finance, banking, law, administration,
or management. A list of FRRP members can be found in the section
“Membership of Board and Panels” of this annual report.

A new FRRC was formed to deal with an enquiry initiated in 2016.

M SERBAEE LT ERAENERGHRE
MEE - E\‘JZIS}%EXETxfi—flﬁﬁﬁE#ﬁﬁfféi
ERHAEH - WBEERRNZESRE - RUBE
WM ZEEBREARTEER - WRsPHEKE
M ERIRT R BB EMKE -

TS E iR T & B & A RIBC I TS (E 3R B 1R 015 43
PR TR BRABALHREHERXMS
RRER M RE - UETERIE-

HISERSTZEEERERHBEBHRITRETR

BEERAABEEZME - R2016F 128318 §f
BERBTZEBEEI8EKRE  EPN\EEE
SACKEBYHERESE - Bt - &/ R1TF
BTHRERECHRMEST - WEERBIZE
ERENRERNAFRZEBEGRZEBEKE] —
£ o

— {E #T 4R K 1O B 75 [E SRR
2016 FEFMAM —RER ©

ZEg ABERER
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (continued)
BEERw

()

Audit Investigation Board (AlB)

The Council may direct the AIB to conduct investigations into possible
auditing or reporting irregularities in relation to listed entities. Under the
powers vested in it under sections 25, 26, 27 and 28 of the FRCO, the AIB
may require relevant persons to produce records and documents, supply
information and provide explanations for the purposes of the investigation.

The CEO of the FRC is the ex-officio Chairman of the AIB. Other members of
the AIB, who are normally staff members of the FRC, are appointed by the
Council. A list of AIB members can be found in the section “Membership of
Board and Panels” of this annual report.

In 2016, the AIB completed 11 investigation cases. It also dealt with
30 investigation cases brought forward from the previous year and 18
investigation cases initiated during the year.

Internal Controls

The FRC maintains an effective internal control system that includes a
clear organisational structure, well-defined levels of authority, and proper
segregation of duties. The FRC assigns a director to take charge of each
case from the moment investigations/enquiries commence.

The FRC regularly reviews all its policies and guidelines relating to personnel
administration, procurement, authorisation of transactions, and the
safeguarding of its assets.

Code of Conduct

FRC staff members are required to adhere to our code of conduct when
carrying out any role on behalf of the FRC. Our code of conduct specifies
standards to be followed in areas that may involve conflicts of interest,
confidentiality of information, personal investments and data protection.
This includes the need for staff members to make regular declarations of
their own and their spouse’s investments, and to notify any changes in their
holdings.

The FRC’s code of conduct is reviewed and updated on a regular basis
to ensure that it remains consistent with the best practices currently being
applied across the areas in which the FRC operates.

Communications with Stakeholders

The FRC actively communicates with stakeholders, including its funding
parties, the accounting and auditing profession, its regulatory counterparts,
and the general investing public.
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Information disseminated by the FRC is user-friendly and easily accessible.
The FRC publishes annual reports and half-yearly eNews to keep
stakeholders informed about the progress of its work and its development.
Operations statistics and press releases about completed cases are
regularly posted on the FRC website (www.frc.org.hk).

The FRC has also set up official pages on certain social media channels,
including Twitter, LinkedIn and YouTube, to enable interested parties to
connect with the FRC in a more interactive manner.

Checks and Balances
Accountability and Audit

The FRC has adopted a strict audit process. The FRC’s annual budget must
be endorsed by the Council. The Secretary for Financial Services and the
Treasury then reviews and approves the FRC’s annual estimates of income
and expenditure.

The financial statements of the FRC are subject to an official audit by
the Government’s Director of Audit; annual reports are submitted to
the Secretary for Financial Services and the Treasury and tabled at the
Legislative Council. The FRC attends the meeting of the Legislative Council
Panel on Financial Affairs and presents a progress report annually.

Process Review Panel (PRP)

The FRC has its work scrutinised by a PRP, the aim of this is to ensure that
individual cases have been dealt with consistently, and that all actions and
decisions taken are in line with internal procedures and guidelines.

The PRP issues an annual report containing the conclusions of its review,
together with suggestions for improvements. Appointments to the PRP are
approved by the Chief Executive of the HKSAR.

Ombudsman

The Ombudsman also indirectly oversees the work of the FRC by dealing
with any public complaints regarding alleged maladministration made
against the FRC and its staff. The FRC did not receive any enquiries from the
Ombudsman in 2016.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF AUDIT
B EERRE

()

Audit Commission
The Government of the Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region

Independent Auditor’s Report
To the Financial Reporting Council

Opinion

| have audited the financial statements of the Financial Reporting Council
set out on pages 39 to 53, which comprise the statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2016, and the statement of comprehensive
income, statement of changes in funds and statement of cash flows for
the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In my opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state
of affairs of the Financial Reporting Council as at 31 December 2016,
and of its results of operations and cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and have
been properly prepared in accordance with section 18(2) of the Financial
Reporting Council Ordinance (Cap. 588).

Basis for opinion

| conducted my audit in accordance with section 19(1) of the Financial
Reporting Council Ordinance and the Audit Commission auditing
standards. My responsibilities under those standards are further described
in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements
section of my report. | am independent of the Financial Reporting Council
in accordance with those standards, and | have fulfilled my other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with those standards. | believe that the audit
evidence | have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
my opinion.

Other information

The Financial Reporting Council is responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises all the information included in the
Financial Reporting Council’s 2016 Annual Report, other than the financial
statements and my auditor’s report thereon.
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My opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information
and | do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with my audit of the financial statements, my responsibility
is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the
other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or
my knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work | have performed, | conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, | am required to report that
fact. | have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Financial Reporting Council
for the financial statements

The Financial Reporting Council is responsible for the preparation of
the financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards and section 18(2) of
the Financial Reporting Council Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the Financial Reporting Council determines is necessary to enable
the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Financial Reporting Council
is responsible for assessing its ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting.

The Financial Reporting Council is assisted by its Finance Committee
in discharging its responsibilities for overseeing the financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
financial statements

My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes my opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
the Audit Commission auditing standards will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these financial statements.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF AUDIT (continued)

ETBERBT®

As part of an audit in accordance with the Audit Commission auditing
standards, | exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. | also:

— identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control;

— obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Financial Reporting Council’s internal control;

— evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the Financial Reporting Council;

— conclude on the appropriateness of the Financial Reporting Council’s
use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Financial Reporting Council’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If | conclude that a material uncertainty exists, | am required to
draw attention in my auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify my opinion. My conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of my auditor’'s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Financial Reporting Council to
cease to continue as a going concern; and

— evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Kenneth Ho Audit Commission
Assistant Director of Audit 26th Floor
for Director of Audit Immigration Tower
7 Gloucester Road
9 March 2017 Wanchai, Hong Kong
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

LUpiE

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the year ended 31 December 2016

(Amounts expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

mE AR

HZE2016F 12 A31 HILFE

(2 FLAETTIIR)

Note
ik 2016 2015
Income WA
Annual contribution FFERANES 4 29,358,000 27,960,000
Interest income B A 5 593,740 522,398
Recovery of costs of investigations FERK AU 253,509 612,866
Gain on disposal of office equipment B2 &I A =R E &
and furniture REW = 3,280 -
30,208,529 29,095,264
Expenditure Z i
Staff costs BT 6 (23,435,234) (21,019,424)
Corporate communications expenses — #i#E 7 H 7 (522,635) (820,178)
Audit oversight research and FERTEEHR
related expenses MRS 8 (1,991,131) (508,000)
Legal and professional fees FRREEER (127,813) (100,493)
Depreciation charge TEXH 11 (148,640) (102,768)
Write off of accounts receivable JE U BR S 8 (24,900) -
Impairment loss on accounts BBl FE AR 3K
receivable reversed ZIBIEEK 12 - 23,625
Other operating expenses HgES 9 (1,077,192) (683,278)
(27,327,545) (23,210,516)
Surplus and total comprehensive FREGK
income for the year BEEWRA 2,880,984 5,884,748

43 EE 3 AN RATBMKRN —#D

The notes on pages 43 to 53 form part of these financial statements.

()
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (ontinueq)

B A& ¥R 3% om0

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As at 31 December 2016

(Amounts expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

BAFEAR 2R

R20164F 12 A31 H

(ZREAETTIIR)

Note

BI5E 2016 2015
Non-current assets FRBEE
Office equipment and furniture MAEREREA 11 371,844 404,570
Current assets RBEE
Receivables and prepayments FEU AR FX SR FEAT FRIR 12 818,422 720,998
Time deposits with original REBHBBE=FEAKN

maturities over three months TEEBTER 13 38,000,000 34,000,000

Cash and cash equivalents BeRReZEEY 14 4,873,300 6,217,033
Total current assets REEEAE 43,691,722 40,938,031
Current liabilities REEE
Accounts payable and accruals FERERFR R ERTE A (2,630,879) (2,790,898)
Net current assets REEEFE 41,060,843 38,147,133
Net assets EEFE 41,432,687 38,551,703
Funds =k
General fund —REE 15 21,432,687 18,551,703
Reserve fund fHEEe 15 20,000,000 20,000,000
Total funds mEE 41,432,687 38,551,703

2017 F 3 A 9 HEMFIE R B HEME R =4 )2

Approved and authorized for issue by the Financial Reporting Council on

9 March 2017

fod R thdk

Mr Paul F. Winkelmann  #if#R %4
Chief Executive Officer 7T A8

Dr John Poon, BBS, JP  EHEBAEBL » HEHEE » KF#t

Chairman */Z

The notes on pages 43 to 53 form part of these financial statements. F 43 B E 53 BRI T AR BHREN—E S -

()
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FUNDS

For the year ended 31 December 2016
(Amounts expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

S2B=

Etizomﬁmﬂ 31BIEFE
(£FUETTIIR)

General fund Reserve fund Total funds

—RES f#Ee wES

At 1 January 2015 20151 F1H 12,666,955 20,000,000 32,666,955
Surplus and total comprehensive 2015 F BB R BEE

income for 2015 WA 5,884,748 - 5,884,748

At 31 December 2015 MN2015F 12 A31H 18,551,703 20,000,000 38,551,703

At 1 January 2016 201641 A1H 18,551,703 20,000,000 38,551,703

Surplus and total comprehensive 2016 FRB MBI A
income for 2016 WA 2,880,984 - 2,880,984
At 31 December 2016 R20165F 12831 H 21,432,687 20,000,000 41,432,687

The notes on pages 43 to 53 form part of these financial statements.

F43EE 3 EMMERATBIRKRN—7D

()
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continueq)
B RS ERR @

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS BemEsR
For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZE2016F 12 A31HILFE
(Amounts expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (EAETTHIR)
Note
{5 2016 2015
Cash flows from operating KEEEREERN
activities Rehe
Surplus for the year FREHK 2,880,984 5,884,748
Adjustments for: FHEIEE :
Depreciation charge weEZH 148,640 102,768
Impairment loss on accounts eI E N
receivable reversed ZIREIE R - (23,625)
Interest income FEUA (593,740) (522,398)
Gain on disposal of office BEERNERER
equipment and furniture AW (3,280) -
2,432,604 5,441,493
Changes in working capital: BEESEE
(Increase)/decrease in receivables FEWER SR R FB T 5RIE
and prepayments (g R (2,743) 59,156
(Decrease)/increase in accounts FEfTBR R R FEET B F
payable and accruals CRiA), /10 (165,019) 348,834
Net cash inflow from KETHEENES
operating activities MAEEE 2264842 5,849,483
Cash flows from investing RETZEEEN
activities RERE
Payment for the purchase of office BERAZERER
equipment and furniture REFRIA (107,634) (37,610)
Interest received 2 U FI B 499,059 413,820
Increase in time deposits with original  REIFHBBE=EAKN
maturities over three months EHAF RGN (4,000,000) (12,000,000)
Net cash outflow from REZBEENES
investing activities mbF®mo (3,608,575) (11,623,790)
Net decrease in cash and ReEkREZEEY
cash equivalents A FEEE (1,343,733) (5,774,307)
Cash and cash equivalents M1A1BZEER
at 1 January HEeEEY 6,217,033 11,991,340
Cash and cash equivalents M12B831HZBEER
at 31 December REeZEY 14 4,873,300 6,217,033
The notes on pages 43 to 53 form part of these financial statements. F43BE 53 BN ARIEHRENH—H o

()
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2016
(Amounts expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(GY)

(b)

General Information

The Financial Reporting Council (FRC) was established in Hong Kong
under the Financial Reporting Council Ordinance (Cap 588) (FRCO).
Its office address is 29th Floor, High Block, Queensway Government
Offices, 66 Queensway, Hong Kong.

Principal Activities

As set out in the FRCO, the FRC is empowered to conduct
investigations concerning auditing and reporting irregularities in
relation to entities listed in Hong Kong, and to make enquiries into
non-compliance with accounting requirements on the part of such
entities.

Significant Accounting Policies
Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs).

Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical
cost convention and are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which is the
functional currency of the FRC.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRSs
requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and
various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the
judgements about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

R ERAR M RE

HZE2016F 12 A31 HILFE
(£FUETTIIR)
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(c)

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Basis of preparation (continued)

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revision to an accounting estimate is recognized in the
period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that
period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

Judgements made by the FRC in the application of IFRSs that have
significant effect on the financial statements and major sources of
estimation uncertainty are discussed in note 17.

A summary of the significant accounting policies adopted by the FRC
is set out below.

Office equipment and furniture

Office equipment and furniture are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, except that items costing less
than $5,000 are expensed when incurred. The cost of an item of office
equipment and furniture comprises its purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to the location and condition
necessary for its intended use.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the
cost of each item of office equipment and furniture over its estimated
useful life after considering its estimated residual value. The respective
useful lives are as follows:

Computers
Other office equipment
Office furniture and fixtures

3 years
7 years
2 to 10 years

Residual values, useful lives and depreciation method are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at least at the end of each reporting
period.

An item of office equipment and furniture is derecognized upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its
use. The gain or loss arising from the derecognition is determined
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds, if any, and the
carrying amount of the relevant asset, and is recognized in surplus or
deficit in the period in which the asset is derecognized.
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(e)

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Office equipment and furniture (continued)

At the end of each reporting period, the FRC assesses whether there
is any indication that an item of office equipment and furniture may be
impaired or a previously recognized impairment loss no longer exists
or may have decreased. When there is an indication of impairment,
the recoverable amount of an item of office equipment and furniture
is estimated, which is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal
and its value in use. An impairment loss is recognized in surplus or
deficit, if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its recoverable
amount. When a previously recognized impairment loss subsequently
reverses, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, to the extent that the increased
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined had no impairment loss been recognized
for the asset in prior periods. Reversals of impairment losses are
recognized in surplus or deficit.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized in the statement
of financial position when the FRC becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of an instrument. Financial assets and financial liabilities
are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or issue of financial
liabilities are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.

Financial assets

Financial assets of the FRC principally comprise accounts receivable,
interest receivable, time deposits and other bank balances. They
are held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets
in order to collect contractual cash flows. The contractual terms of
financial assets give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding. Subsequent to initial recognition, they are measured at
amortized cost using the effective interest method, less any allowance
for impairment loss. An impairment loss is recognized when there is
objective evidence that the asset is impaired. The amount of the loss
is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at
the financial asset’s original effective interest rate. Any impairment
loss is recognized in surplus or deficit and reflected in an allowance
account. When the FRC considers that there are no realistic prospects
of recovery of the asset, the relevant amounts are written off.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Any subsequent reversal of an impairment loss is recognized in
surplus or deficit, to the extent that the carrying amount of the asset
does not exceed its amortized cost that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognized.

A financial asset is derecognized when the rights to receive cash flows
from the asset have expired or the FRC has transferred substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities comprise accounts payable and accruals and
are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method
subsequent to initial recognition.

A financial liability is derecognized when the relevant obligation is
discharged, cancelled or expires.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, deposits with
banks and other short-term highly liquid investments with maturity
within three months when placed or acquired, that are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash and subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable.

Unconditional and non-refundable contributions are recognized as
income when they become receivable.

Interest income is recognized on an accruals basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that discounts the estimated
future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial
instrument to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.

Recovery of costs of investigation is recognized when the right to
receive payment is established.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Employee benefits

Salaries and paid annual leave are accrued in the period in which the
employees rendered the associated services.

Bonus payments are recognized when the FRC has a present legal
or constructive obligation to make such payments as a result of past
events and a reliable estimate can be made.

Contributions to the Mandatory Provident Fund (MPF) scheme are
recognized as an expense when employees have rendered services
entitling them to the contributions. Contributions are made based on
a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries. The assets of the MPF
scheme are held separately from those of the FRC in an independently
administered fund. The employer contributions vest fully with the
employees when contributed into the MPF scheme, except for the
employer voluntary contributions, which are refunded to the FRC
when the employee leaves employment prior to the contributions
vesting fully, in accordance with the rules of the MPF scheme.

Annual Contribution

The Companies Registry Trading Fund (CRTF), the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (HKICPA), the Securities
and Futures Commission (SFC) and the Hong Kong Exchanges and
Clearing Limited (HKEx) signed a Memorandum of Understanding
(MoU) regarding the funding arrangement of the FRC. Each party
agreed to contribute an annual amount of $7.3 million to the FRC in
2016 (2015: $7.0 million) for the recurring expenditure. To cater for
inflation adjustments and to provide greater certainty to the FRC to
facilitate its development and future work plan, the annual contribution
from each party for 2017 shall be increased to approximately $7.7
million.

The office premises of the FRC are provided by the CRTF at a nominal
rent of $1 per annum. All the related utility and sewage charges,
outgoings, costs and expenses incurred in repairing, maintaining and
managing the office premises are borne by the CRTF.

Interest Income

Interest income was earned from time deposits and other bank
balances.
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6. Staff Costs BT
2016 2015
Salaries, variable pay, bonuses N - FEENe - fEAT

and gratuities ;E® 21,710,691 19,083,476
MPF contributions SR AE SR 683,484 772,604
Staff recruitment expenses HEETZH 320,562 479,659
Medical and life insurance BERASRR 499,936 461,190
Staff training and development B TR %R 79,204 118,141
Others Hh 141,357 104,354
23,435,234 21,019,424

Except for the Chief Executive Officer, Council members are not FRITERAREL SN - BATSIE SR /BA B & -

remunerated. The above staff costs included the emoluments of the

Chief Executive Officer as stated below:

A EBTRAD B e TTHRAHME -

2016 2015

Salaries and Medical
variable pay contributions insurance Total Total
FMRFEME REEAEEUR BERR bk ok
Paul F. Winkelmann' BER! 3,132,012 - 3,145,512 -
Mark Dickens 2 eI 918,160 6,332 930,492 3,922,194
4,050,172 6,332 4,076,004 3,922,194

1 Appointed with effect from 1 April 2016
2 Retired on 31 March 2016

()
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10.

Corporate Communications Expenses 7. HEERXH
2016 2015
Promotion and public education HERAEHE 251,556 584,752
Publications AR T 203,075 201,244
Others Hih 68,004 34,182
522,635 820,178

Audit Oversight Research and Related Expenses 8.

During 2016 the FRC engaged Deloitte LLP to prepare an update
report on the auditor oversight regime. In addition, Deloitte LLP
have been engaged to carry out a benchmarking study of the
operations of four major auditor oversight regimes. The latter project
is approximately 50% completed as at year end. In 2015, the
expenditure related to a compensation and benefits benchmarking
study.

BITEEMEREEX L
2016 4F + B 5 IE R /BZ 5t Deloitte LLP 3t
FETEETEBBIEL B s - A RhIU{EE
DR TR NEFETIEERE - &#2
2016 F K » XA EMRN TIEEELT
FX—3 ° 2015 F M2 H 2R VERB B RIS
EBFRIT ©

Other Operating Expenses 9. Hih&EX I
2016 2015
Conferences and duty visits SEMLERER 307,198 152,709
Professional liability insurance BEHFRR 25,150 25,150
Office equipment and furniture expensed MAEREREREME 64,858 19,111
Printing, stationery and office expenses TED - X ARPAERE 679,986 486,308
1,077,192 683,278

In accordance with section 19 of the FRCO, the financial statements
of the FRC are audited by the Director of Audit. No fee is charged for
this service.

Taxation

Pursuant to section 16 of the FRCO, the FRC is exempt from taxation
under the Inland Revenue Ordinance (Cap 112).

10.

RIBCEATSESRBIEDDFE 1915 - MIBERR
W BREBEAZBIRAEER  EPY
BRI RS ER °

Bi1E

RIBC R TS E SR BIED)DFE 1615 - MIFERR
E#ReMEARBHRBED) (F1125)#
Rt o

()
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11. Office Equipment and Furniture 11. PAERERFRE
Other Office
office furniture
Computers  equipment and fixtures Total
HtMAZE RAERA
EL Bdi] REE e
Cost 27N
At 1 January 2015 K2015F1 A1 H 520,492 144,891 494,144 1,169,527
Additions BA 29,680 - 7,930 37,610
At 31 December 2015 MR2015F 12 431 H 550,172 144,891 502,074 1,197,137
At 1 January 2016 H20164F1 A1 H 550,172 144,891 502,074 1,197,137
Additions A 50,164 60,750 5,000 115,914
Disposals BEE (8,226) (56,500) - (64,726)
At 31 December 2016 M 2016512 31 H 592,110 149,141 507,074 1,248,325
Accumulated depreciation  Z:HifE
At 1 January 2015 H®20154F1A1H (460,394) (112,633) (116,772) (689,799)
Charge for the year FREZH (45,123) (7,900) (49,745) (102,768)
At 31 December 2015 R 201512 A 31 H (505,517)  (120,583)  (166,517)  (792,567)
At 1 January 2016 ®K201641 818 (505,517)  (120,533)  (166,517)  (792,567)
Charge for the year FAZH (34,929) (11,137) (102,574) (148,640)
Written back on disposals & RO 8,226 56,500 - 64,726
At 31 December 2016 A 2016512831 A (532,220) (75,170)  (269,091)  (876,481)
Net book value BREFE
At 31 December 2016 M2016F12H31 H 59,890 73,971 237,983 371,844
At 31 December 2015 K2015F 12 31 H 44,655 24,358 335,557 404,570




(O

12. Receivables and Prepayments 12. EURBRAA R TR 718

2016 2015
Accounts receivable FE U BR 3R - 132,657
Less: allowance for impairment loss B REB R EEER - (77,125)
- 55,532

Prepayments AR
- Medical and life insurance — BEMASRRE 284,619 253,205
— Staff benefits — BIEA 12,445 24,850
— Professional liability insurance — EEETRRE 13,589 13,589
— Others — Hif 100,925 61,659
Interest receivable JEULF B, 406,844 312,163
818,422 720,998

YRR T RIFRAE R AT A - FRE
WRRFOR BRI T

The accounts receivable mainly represented the recoverable costs of
investigations. The movement in the allowance for impairment loss in

respect of accounts receivable during the year is as follows:

2016 2015
At 1 January ®1A1H 77,125 100,750
Impairment loss reversed [REZJENCRIER=EN - (23,625)
Uncollectible amount written off 0GR RN B £ RE (77,125) -
At 31 December ©®12A31H - 77,125

13. Time Deposits with Original Maturities over 13. REIH ARB=@ AN EH=Z

Three Months EA
FEIEBEBB=EANTEHFREN@EA
NEA KR —FHR 2 FBRER - REEFF
EH0.58EFE1.53EFE (20155 : 0.75F
F£1.34E) - 2016 F K 2015F 12 A31 H
4B RS BARAR 12 (8 A N EIE] -

Time deposits with original maturities over three months represented
four-month, six-month and one-year term deposits which carried fixed
interest ranging from 0.58% to 1.583% (2015: 0.75% to 1.34%) per
annum. The balances outstanding at 31 December 2016 and 2015
had maturities less than 12 months from the end of the reporting
period.

()
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continueq)
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14. Cash and Cash Equivalents 14. RE RIREZEEY)
2016 2015
Cash on hand FERS 3,649 3,426
Current accounts X REHREFER 127,704 238,908
Savings account WEER 541,947 374,699
Time deposits with original maturities [REVER A T iEm =& A 5
within three months EEER 4,200,000 5,600,000
4,873,300 6,217,033
15. Funds 15. 5%
General fund represents the operating surplus of the FRC’s recurrent —RESNEVKERRECEEESHEE
funding. Bk o
Reserve fund represents the non-recurrent contributions received HESEATEMESERES  BESEA
from the CRTF, the HKICPA, the SFC and the HKEx at the NG FEDNBRATRIE R E SRR
establishment of the FRC according to the MoU. Each party W ERBDFMICANELCEEESD - THE
contributed a lump-sum amount of $5 million which is not refundable. BERA—ZETAERE AERABEETINE
The reserve fund is to be deployed to meet any inadequacies of the & RESTRAKELHESTRENAMES
recurrent funding and other exigencies of circumstances. BERTEA -
16. Financial Instruments 16. T A
The carrying amounts of financial instruments by category are as FHESMTANKRESEAT ¢
follows:
2016 2015
Financial assets at amortized cost REBRATTENEREE
Accounts receivable JFEUTBR K - 55,532
Interest receivable FEMFILE 406,844 312,163
Time deposits with original maturities REBIRBBE=EAH
over three months TEHRTF K 38,000,000 34,000,000
Cash and cash equivalents RERBEEEY 4,873,300 6,217,033
43,280,144 40,584,728
Financial liabilities at amortized cost RESRATTENERAs
Accounts payable and accruals FERBRR R EREA 2,630,879 2,790,898
The carrying amounts of the FRC’s financial assets and financial M2016F & 2015F 12 A31 8 MEERS
liabilities approximate to their fair values as at 31 December 2016 and MeREERCRIBENERASBEELOAR
2015, nfEE-

()
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17. Financial Risks

(@)

(b)

(c)

Credit risk

The FRC’s credit risk is primarily attributable to accounts receivable,
time deposits and other bank balances.

The accounts receivable are assessed for recoverability on an
individual basis and impairment allowances are recognized when
considered necessary. The recovery of the investigation costs
is closely monitored by the Council. The FRC does not hold any
collateral or other credit enhancements over these balances.

The Council approved an investment policy which, subject to other
limits, only allows the FRC to place deposits with licensed banks in
Hong Kong having regard to their credit rating. The policy also limits
the amount placed with each bank and the maximum duration the
deposit is placed in order to manage its credit risk.

The portfolio of deposits is managed and monitored to ensure it
meets the investment policy with bi-monthly reports submitted to the
Council. As a result, the FRC is not exposed to significant credit risk.
The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the carrying
amount of the financial assets as set out in the statement of financial
position.

Liquidity risk

The FRC has a strong cash position and therefore has a very low level
of liquidity risk. The FRC maintains sufficient levels of cash and cash
equivalents and manages its working capital by carefully reviewing
forecasts on a regular basis. All financial liabilities were due to be
repaid within three months (2015: three months) from the end of the
reporting period.

Market risk

Currency risk

The FRC received its funding and settled its expenses in Hong Kong
dollars. Its financial assets and financial liabilities were all denominated
in Hong Kong dollars. Hence, the FRC was not exposed to any
currency risk.

Interest rate risk

The FRC’s interest bearing assets mainly comprised funds placed in
time deposits with fixed interest rate which are measured at amortized
cost in the financial statements. The FRC was subject to the risk
that the fair value of these time deposits would fluctuate because of
changes in market interest rates. In order to manage this risk, the FRC
adopted a policy to monitor interest rate risk on a continuous basis.

17. &R AR

(a)

= ARk
MFERBATAENERRRE S REK
IR EMFR R EADIRTT AR

JE U AR SRR M Rl 2R AT U B M R TR RS
BREZRHERRERE - AREIEZAE
FRARE) B o BA T TE R R 3 S 3 7% 5 A AR AT
B IR R SRR E B RS
I °

REFEERBKE D BBNREBE - 8
BERBEANETAEMRIRET @ Rig
ERFANBEBRRRITRILEN - BEK
RIRTE T SERITHFR_ERAE HRFR
WERRFRS - WEEREARER

MKERDEENERFRES  BERTE
REWRE - X EEMIEA MM EERBKE
REME - BN LaliE e - BSERBY &
BEAERER - BBARKRPEINSEBE
ERmSERRMAZEN&SERRR -

RBE TR

PEERBORSARTH - FHRB IR
RIEEE - BBERDERTENRFNRE
REAEEY  WHEBEMBERTERIA
BEREZEESD - MASRBENRS Y
RE=EAN(2015% - =EAR)FIHMEER -

IS

BEEmpE
MBERBE S WA R HYRET M
BEeREENERABHANETREN -
U B S B 0 B I S AR (A B W LR -

=@ b

MR IEER BN AN B EERRBEE M EH
FEMER - MERIFRE A ABERA AT
B BUBERBERETHFRLIAEER
MSMEEHmEBOER - REEEREA
B - B 75 EE 3R P ERER DA 455 A 3 B SR R R\ By
HIER ©
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MANAGEMENT AND OPERATIONS REVIEW
BENE(FLIER

We currently have a complement of 22 staff in the FRC, comprising a strong  BIiSERBEMA22ZKE i— X EEEHESR
team of professionally qualified accountants with audit background, a legally ~ FEFZEESAIBEE - — R AP EARER L0
qualified in-house General Counsel and dedicated administrative staff. HITEFMEBHAITTIRA BAEK -

The key operations management team is: FEEEBEEKBE

1 Mr Paul F. Winkelmann, CEO
FRE RS AE - TTHARE

2 Ms Wincey Lam, Deputy CEO
MBELL - BITTHAEE

3 Mr Chan Tak Shing, Senior Director
BREER L mRHAEEE

4 Ms Florence Wong, Senior Director
TERZT  =fASHE

()
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Key Operations Statistics

FEEEHE

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
Pursuable complaints received
B A] IR AR 19 20 33 46 118
Modified auditors’ reports screened
ERMAIEEREE R ZBMRE 138 168 171 174 178
Financial statements selected for review
B iE (ER B A B Bk 75 75 87 75 38*
Investigations initiated
FARMBASHEZR 9 7 22 11 18
Investigations completed
TR FEHEZR 9 5 4 9 11
Enquiries completed
TR B ER 1 2 1 - 1

* The financial statements review programme was enhanced with revised — *
filtering criteria during 2016 to focus on certain areas of likely non-
compliance/irregularity. Therefore, the number of financial statements
selected for review in 2016 is not comparable to the statistics of previous
years.

RBR2016F R EEER - LEHBRENA
AR TNERRERE/TETRANER - E&m
HEM B RAEMTE o Eib - R20165F iz
ERB MM SRR EEX A ] EIARFEH
HEMELLE -

()
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MANAGEMENT AND OPERATIONS REVIEW (continueq)

EIE K E/ELIRE @

()

Review of Complaints

Every complaint received is carefully evaluated prior to determinating
whether to close the case or commence an investigation and/or an enquiry.

During the year, we amended our procedures manual to incorporate an
approach to handling vexatious or nuisance complaints as part of our
efficiency and effectiveness review. This will enable us to efficiently dispose
of any such complaints in future years, and enable our staff to focus on
handling our remaining case load.

The FRC received 118 pursuable complaints in 2016. Of these, 103 related
to auditing or reporting irregularities and 10 related to non-compliance with
accounting requirements. A further five complaints involved both auditing or
reporting irregularities and non-compliance with accounting requirements.

EHRRF
AREREMAEENSREN  WARRTHER
RUESRMBASR, AEM -

RER - KBERTERFFM - MARRE2EE
SEREERNIRFERNTTE - AEF RO
Rk o WL HS A B AR B AR R B A MUt R I AE A
ZEAER - MBBE TRl SRR IR AR

KBHR2016F LZE 1185 R AT IR#EIREF - B4 - 103
RHNBANRERTIETE 10O RTERER
REFEHE - BINARARSRESNXERTETA
RTBREAREEE -

2016 2015
Complaints from the public RERREIKF 106 30
Complaints from listed entity KB EmEEBNRS 1
Complaints from the HKEx R BB ATHILER 4 6
Complaints from the HKICPA REBAGTRAGHIRF 3 7
Complaints from the SFC R EFEEE IR 4 3
Total et 118 46

The FRC handled the 24 complaints brought forward from the previous year,
along with the 118 pursuable complaints received during the year. Of these
complaints, 11 led to 12 investigations and one enquiry being initiated, and
4 complaints were referred to specified enforcement agencies. By the end of
the year, 14 complaints were still being evaluated.

The handling of 113 complaints was completed with no follow-up action as
no apparent non-compliance/auditing irregularity was identified. Of these
complaints, 97 (2015: 22) appear to have come from the same source and
were directed at a single audit firm.

ERRFRIEE24 RPN E—FEEBENIRE - A
R8RRAFNERN T RERSF - &5 KB
M REFRFA12RASR—REM - TEN4RE
FTIRPRITHEE - HERFFER  KABRINEEH
14 R o

Bz IRE R R E T - 13RS A BB T
ARETBRETRTFE/META  RLERS
SEAK T 4 T 2AREURETTE) - 97 R (20154  227R)
ERRREAR—HR - WEE R —MEsHATT

2016 2015
Brought forward FYIEHFOER 24 14
Pursuable complaints received FER A IRER R 118 46
Initiated investigation and/or enquiry BT EHNER (11) ©)
Referred to specified enforcement A FIRARITRENER
agencies (4) @)
Completed with no follow-up action B MES ZREBETHHEZR (113) (28)
In progress at end of year FRIDEFEBPAEZR 14 24
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Review of complaints
FERIRSF
142
128
2
20 %
| =r= 0 36
2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
<l Completed ~{ll— Handled during the year
2 588K FAERIE
Source of pursuable complaints
A BRE IR FR AT SR
118
90%)
W Members of the public
46 N YN
I Regulators
33 BEHE
6% 65%) ; i
[l Listed entities
19 20 ETER
0/,
5% e B Both regulators and members of the public
95% 80%| 35%| 9% RREEEHBRARALT
2012 2013 2014 2015 2016

—
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MANAGEMENT AND OPERATIONS REVIEW (continueq)
ERENEELRE @

By eliminating the anomalies created by the number of complaints which  #fif# 72 20154F % 2016 4F & 22 2 &5 B — AR
appear to have come from a single source in 2015 and 2016, together with  EZRFTERNEFIE N - AR 2014 F3 AR B0

a different anomaly created in 2014, a different picture emerges. —ERBERE - WFRRO DM EFTRE -
24
21
20
19
33%
5% 15%) 17
%
12% =

B Members of the public
95% 80% NRAT

0 B Listed entities
52% thEE

l Both re ulatkors and members of the public
FRREEERERARAL

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016

—
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118
3%
9%
88%
46
RN 1 39
coo B 7%
19 20
I 5%
37% 257 70%

Size of accounting firms involved in complaints
B RBFFHE AT R AR

W Small-size accounting firms (with five or less
partners/ directors)

NEVEEHRITT (BRBRFATHERA/ EE)

M Medium-size accounting firms (with six or more
partners/ directors)
RRIEERITT (BABSAENERA/ ES)

B Big Four accounting firms
PR ETRITT

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016

By also eliminating the anomalies created in 2014, 2015 and 2016
mentioned in the chart on source of pursuable complaints, once again a

different picture emerges.

BEHIBTORROSHIERE -

R P b it m] BR M R AR SRR Bl R T IR K A 2014 &
2015 F R2016FFTBAMERBMRE W RIFH

24
21
19 20 5%
17 19%
5%
37%) 18%
3%
50%
45%
9%
47%)
42%
30% 31%

W Small-size accounting firms (with five or less

partners/ directors)

PREFENT (FREIATHEBA/ EE)

M Medium-size accounting firms (with six or more

partners/ directors)

EEETANTT (AARNBRIALMERA/ ESE)

M Big Four accounting firms

R EHENTT

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
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MANAGEMENT AND OPERATIONS REVIEW (continueq)

EIE K E/ELIRE @

Financial Statements Review Programme

As mentioned in the CEO’s report, the financial statements review
programme was amended to focus on areas of likely non-compliance/
irregularity as identified by the use of a “filtering” mechanism.

In addition, a full review of companies adopting Chinese Accounting
Standards for Business Enterprises (ASBE) continued to be carried out in
collaboration with HKEx and HKICPA.

Financial statements reviewed by external reviewers are re-examined by
staff of the FRC to ensure that any cases of apparent non-compliance with
accounting requirements have been dealt with consistently; and all review
points raised are evaluated to determine whether any follow up action is
required.

Screening of modified auditors’ reports

B R F AT
MINTRERBEFL - AREH T HEREEN
SHEI - IUEBE (65 ] BIE SRR Th
TR EE TETANGE -

A RRBEBERBZARBBSHMAGEE
EHARBEESHERRRUBRMROAF] o

SMBEMABMBENNEBHREELARENE
%o R BT BRI NSRS RE
EENEZR: MARTEEXMAENER - R
ERE T ERAUEARAETTE

PR ERE S RAEARE

2016 2015
Brought forward FHIRBERMEZRE - -
Screened during the year FRRBEIMEZR 178 174
No apparent non-compliance EAABTERATEEMNER (76) (95)
Review required FEFMHOER (102) (79)
In progress at end of year FRDERBFHER = -

Review of modified auditors’ reports

ERFERESRABERE

2016 2015
Brought forward REPEHTFOEZE 2 17
Initiated in the year FARMAEMNER 102 79
Completed with no follow-up action B mES ZRIRETEAER (100) (90)
Required review of entire set of EEEMEOUBHRENER
financial statements 3) (1)
Required follow-up action FERDMBETHHER - (3)
In progress at end of year FRDEFEBPHOEZR 1 2

()
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Financial statements reviewed in 2016-breakdown by filters
72016 FEFBMN I EIRK — UEHEIRG D

Listed entities whose audit firm is small in relation to the complexity of
the audit

HE R/ AR BT R IR AR R RO B SRR

1 Alleged non-compliance with accounting requirements and/ or
auditing or reporting irregularities based on media reports/ listed
entities subject to mterventlon by HKEx
ERBRRRESMe TN EtE Jr%ﬁm%ﬂ&/ BB R ERTETT
R BN )\E’Jtm,a

B Financial stratements with significant prior period adjustments
suggesting investors relying on prior period financial statements could
have been misled

EHEAMPRABNIBRER (REEXXZANHPVHHERRE)

B Modified auditors’ reports
IFEREE R ZBAN NS

ug

Investigations &

3 25
The FRC handled 30 investigations brought forward from 2015 and initiated B 2016 FRIZE 2015 FEEBHM 0 RASE
18 investigations in 2016. In total, 11 investigations were completed and the  RWEM 18 RAEMEE - ABEHTK 11 RFAEHE
investigation reports have been referred to the HKICPA who will determine %= WERAEBSHAACENZAETRSE A8
whether any disciplinary or other action is warranted. Summaries of the HBEEEEHEEHETTMALRED HEMITE - B
investigations completed in 2016 can be found on pages 65 to 76 of this 2016 e M AT ERNMEH N A FIRFE5HE
annual report. FT768 °

=

N}

During the year, the HKICPA's disciplinary committees took disciplinary HRFR @ EEETASNLELZESRABNE
action in response to eight investigations completed and referred to it by FHFEEZARBEEN K\ FHAE @B HEEALE
the FRC in earlier years. The certified public accountants (practising) and &5 ° xS ERS LR E S LR ELE W E
corporate practices involved in these cases were reprimanded and ordered  ER#FHSINEFLREA -

to pay penalties and costs.

()
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MANAGEMENT AND OPERATIONS REVIEW (ontinueq)
EIE K E/ELIRE @

By the end of the year, 37 investigations were in progress. Some of these EEANEFER  KABINAEETIT FHEEE - 25
investigations involve highly complex issues and require the study of HEFAEMEZREREEMNEE  SEMEZHE
financial statements across several years. These have required more time FEHNPBEHRE - ELFAETEAETZSFZHEEE
for evidence to be collected and information to be reviewed. The increase in =~ EHEMEH LR - ERNAEFAESFEZNHE L
the number of outstanding cases is due to our focus to resolve complaints in ~ JYERABH N 90 BHHY B IZHAR REIEIEF - MU
accordance with our target of 90 days, and single complaints/reviews giving & E—1%:5F " BEEAXEHZEAFAEEZE -

rise to multiple investigations.

2016 2015
In progress at beginning of year FUFAERMER 30 28
Initiated in the year FREAFAENER 18 11
48 39
Completed B (11) 9)
In progress at end of year FRIDEAEFHER 37 30
Progress of investigation cases
AEERNER
48
39
32
17
15
9
= 5 4 = m
9 L ]
2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
- Completed ~—{ll— Handled during the year
B5ERK FRRE

()
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Key issues and findings in completed investigations

The major audit deficiency identified is the failure of auditors to identify
inappropriate accounting treatments by companies. This indicates that the
auditors had not performed appropriate audit procedures and obtained
sufficient evidence to support the accounting treatments proposed by the

management in respect of the following areas:

ErERAEEENEEZEAERER
ARRRNH L BRI TR ZEARYDELHI A
AEATEE R RENE « ERR T RBEH R
BRTEEE R RER R WAL EEE
94T 31 B0 T 2 PR Y BT 3%

Top four
B PR R

l Business combinations
BEEH

Impairment of assets
BER

Revenue recognition
Wt R

Financial instruments
SRAE

Disclosure deficiencies
HETE

Earnings per share
BREF]
Share-based payment

AN

Income tax and deferred tax

M MIEFETL IR

W Provisions and contingencies

B A

The top four combined represents 79% for 2016 (2015: 75%) of deficiencies

found.

BAMMEERIE2016F 22 FHEFEN79%
(20154 : 75%)

—
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MANAGEMENT AND OPERATIONS REVIEW (continueq)

EIE K E/ELIRE @

Enquiries
The FRC brought forward two enquiries from last year and initiated one new
enquiry.

Each enquiry is handled by a Financial Reporting Review Committee with
support from staff of the FRC. The time taken to complete an enquiry
depends on the circumstances and complexity of individual cases.

B
ABEER E—FERHOMRE AR REHN
—RENER -

GREMERBUBERRIZEEGRARET —
FAEE - =R —FEAEERMBENRERFER
EZRE R KT E

2016 2015

In progress at beginning of year FUEMFERE 2 1
Initiated in the year FHRNEHASMAESR 1 1
3 2

Completed ST E A ER (1) =
In progress at end of year FERDESHARNEZE 2 2

Progress of enquiry cases
EMERNER
4
3
3
> 2
|
2
| u o
1 1 0
|
2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
- Completed = Handled during the year
B IEK FNERIE

()
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Summaries of completed investigations

The FRC completed 11 investigation cases in 2016. Summaries of the key
findings are as follows.

Acquisitions of subsidiaries, impairment assessments of intangible
assets and goodwill, calculation of loss per share and re-measurement
of contingent consideration

Background

There were possible non-compliances with accounting requirements in
the listed entity’s consolidated financial statements for two consecutive
years. These possible non-compliances related to acquisitions of
subsidiaries, impairment assessments of intangible assets and goodwill,
calculation of loss per share, and re-measurement of contingent
consideration.

Issues

Whether the auditor had performed adequate audit procedures to obtain
sufficient appropriate audit evidence to support their unmodified audit
opinion on the financial statements.

Analysis
The investigation discovered the following auditing irregularities:

(@ In respect of acquisitions of subsidiaries, the auditor did not
challenge management’s projections on the estimated future profit
of the acquired businesses which significantly affected the initial
and subsequent measurement of the contingent considerations. In
one of the acquisitions, the auditor failed to identify the incorrect
classification of the contingent consideration as equity.

The auditor also failed to perform procedures, other than
relying on the acquirees’ financial statements and management
representation, to ensure all the identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed in the acquisitions were recognised, separately
from goodwill, and measured at their acquisition-date fair values in
accordance with the accounting requirements.

(b) In respect of impairment assessments of certain intangible assets
and goodwill, the auditor did not (i) challenge management for using
out-dated valuation; (i) consider the unfavourable market conditions;
and (i) consider the actual performance of the related business
in determining the recoverable amounts of the relevant assets.
Consequently, the auditor failed to obtain sufficient appropriate audit
evidence.

(c) The auditor failed to check the calculation of the weighted average
number of ordinary shares outstanding and was not aware that the
loss per share was incorrectly presented in the financial statements.

EERNRAEERBTE
KER2016FZH I RAEME - U TAEERAE
BRZWE -

WEEF AR BREENBRENRENR  S8KRE
BRAERIARENERNTE

AR

EHEREENF RSP ERE A efFE N EN
BEREEE  ERSRRETAR  BREEM
BENRERNR - BRBRNFE - REAKER
EHEE -

&

BB R RDRITEAET - WERFESHEEH
FEEFELABYBRROBRER

il N)
&

IEL)\T%E+ > ’?Tﬁ

@ HEBTFARSTH - ﬁ%ﬂzﬁﬂixxﬁgt’ﬂiﬁ
BT R BR R R AFTRR - EHHARK
EBNTEMBEABTRERATLE - E"HEP

—TBUREE - BT R AL RIS AR B EER
DI ©

BESN - RZEREN R T SRR MBI B IR R
BEEENBAI - TNEENTEFEF - K
HEOR P R AR B T BX 1S B AT 2% 28k 2 B e
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Conclusion
The above auditing irregularities and the investigation report have been
referred to the HKICPA to determine any follow-up action.

Accounting for acquisitions, convertible bonds and share-based
payment transactions

Background

The listed entity made two acquisitions, being an acquisition of 50%
equity interest in an entity (Acquisition A) and an acquisition of 100%
equity interest in another entity (Acquisition B)

The consideration for Acquisition A was settled by cash and the issue of
two convertible bonds (CB1 and CB2). CB1 and CB2 were measured at
values equal to their principal amounts upon initial recognition. CB2 was
separated into equity and liability components. There were embedded
derivatives in CB2 but the relevant financial statements did not mention
this.

The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities acquired in
Acquisition A and Acquisition B were accounted for at the same value as
their carrying amounts at their respective acquisition dates.

Convertible bonds were issued to an entity wholly-owned by a key
member of management of the listed entity (CB3) and a third party
(CB4)

CB3 and CB4 were measured at values equal to their principal amounts
upon initial recognition.

CB4 was separated into equity and liability components. There were
embedded derivatives in CB4 but the relevant financial statements did not
mention this.

Other share-based payment transactions

The listed entity granted share options to its directors, employees and
consultants.

The fair value of the share options was estimated at the date of grant
using the black-scholes option pricing model. The term of the implied
yield used in determining the fair value of the share options was
significantly longer than the expected term of the option granted. The
period for determining the historical volatility of the share price was less
than the expected term of the share options, and the expected term of the
share options was significantly shorter than the exercise period taking into
account that certain options had been exercised early.
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The listed entity also granted certain warrants to a service provider in
exchange for his services. The counterparty was required to complete a
specified period of service before becoming unconditionally entitled to
those warrants. The listed entity recognised the share-based payment
expenses on the date of grant in full. The period for determining the
historical volatility of the share price in estimating the fair value of the
warrants on the grant date was shorter than the expected term of the
warrants.

Issues

()  Whether the auditor had properly designed and performed audit
procedures that were appropriate in the circumstances for the
purpose of obtaining sufficient appropriate audit evidence.

(i) Whether the auditor had properly evaluated whether the relevant
financial statements were prepared in accordance with the
requirements of the applicable financial reporting framework.

Analysis
Acquisition A and Acquisition B

Certain identifiable assets acquired in Acquisition A and Acquisition B that
met the contractual-legal criterion were not recognised separately from
goodwill. CB1 and CB2 were not measured at their fair values upon initial
recognition. The embedded derivatives of CB2 were not separated from
the liability component and accounted for as a derivative.

CB3 and CB4

There were unidentifiable goods or services received by the listed entity
in relation to the issue of CB3 and CB4. However, CB3 and CB4 were
not accounted for as share-based payment transactions. The fair values
of the unidentifiable goods or services, being the difference between the
consideration received and the fair values of CB3 and CB4, were not
recognised as an expense.

The embedded derivatives of CB4 were not identified and no assessment
was made as to whether they should be separately recognised from the
liability component.

Other share-based payment transactions
The inputs to the option pricing model used in determining the fair value
of share options and warrants were not consistent with the terms of the

agreements.

The warrants granted were vested in stages and the related share-based
payment expenses should be recognised over the vesting period.
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Based on the above, the AIB found that the auditor failed to sufficiently
evaluate the terms and substance of the relevant transactions and the
applicable accounting requirements and therefore failed to perform audit
procedures to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to support their
unmodified opinions on the relevant financial statements.

The AIB also concluded that the engagement director failed to maintain
professional knowledge and skill at the level required and failed to
act diligently in accordance with the Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants.

Conclusion
The above auditing irregularities and the investigation report has been
referred to the HKICPA for follow-up.

Income recognition

Background

The listed entity recognised a waiver of a substantial shareholder’s
advance in its consolidated financial statements as income, which
significantly reduced the loss for the year. Both the auditor of the
relevant financial statements and the successive auditor agreed with the
accounting treatment.

Issue
Whether the auditors had correctly considered the accounting treatment
of the waiver in forming their audit opinions on the financial statements.

Analysis

Both auditors failed to (a) correctly consider the substance of the waiver
of the shareholder’s advance; and (b) justify why the accounting for
the waiver as income was appropriate and compliant with applicable
accounting standards; and (c) evaluate the appropriateness of the
accounting treatment and the financial effect of the waiver in forming their
opinions on the financial statements.

Conclusion
The above auditing irregularities and the investigation reports have been
referred to the HKICPA to determine any follow-up action.
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Contingent consideration

Background

There was a possible non-compliance with accounting requirements in
the listed entity’s consolidated financial statements for two consecutive
years (audited by two different auditors) in relation to a contingent
consideration which arose from the acquisition of subsidiaries.

Issue

Whether the auditors had obtained sufficient appropriate audit evidence
to support the accounting treatment for the contingent consideration in
forming their audit opinions on the financial statements.

Analysis

In the year of acquisition, the listed entity did not recognise any
contingent consideration at the acquisition date and at the end of the
reporting period. The auditor failed to (a) challenge the reasonableness of
management’s projection of the future profit of the acquired business; (b)
test the projection with relevant and reliable evidence; and (c) identify that
disclosing the contingent consideration as a non-adjusting event after the
reporting period was a non-compliance with accounting requirements.

In the subsequent year, the successive auditor failed to (a) identify the
non-compliances in the opening balances and comparative information
in relation to the contingent consideration; (b) adequately test and assess
the measurement of the recognised contingent consideration; (c) identify
that presenting the recognised contingent consideration, which was a
non-cash item, in the consolidated statement of cash flows and disclosing
the contingent consideration as a non-adjusting event after the reporting
period were non-compliances with accounting requirements.

Conclusion
The above auditing irregularities and the investigation reports have been
referred to the HKICPA to determine any follow-up action.
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Auditing prepayments and sales transactions

Background

This investigation arises from the financial statements review program.
In June 2012, the auditor appointed to audit the consolidated financial
statements of a listed entity for the year ended 30 June 2011 (the 2011
Financial Statements) issued a disclaimer of opinion. This appointment
was to replace the former auditor following their inability to obtain
sufficient and reliable evidence to complete the 2011 audit.

Issues

The disclaimer of opinion on the 2011 Financial Statements referred
to scope limitations on the opening balances at 30 June 2010 and
furthermore the listed entity announced the result of a forensic
investigation citing problems going back to the year ended 30 June 2008.
These events indicated that there were possible auditing irregularities in
the audits of the financial statements for the years ended 30 June 2008
(the 2008 Audit), 30 June 2009 (the 2009 Audit) and 30 June 2010 (the
2010 Audit) in respect of the following items:

(i)  Prepayments to three suppliers for purchases for the year ended 30
June 2010 and prepayments made to the major customer for the
years ended 30 June 2009 and 2010.

(i) Sales to the major customer for each of the years ended 30 June
2008 to 30 June 2010.

Analysis
Prepayments to three suppliers

The prepayments to three suppliers at 30 June 2010 were a significant
line item which should have given rise to a heightened awareness by the
auditor as to its audit significance. However, the auditor only performed
fluctuation analysis and concluded at the planning stage that no
significant risks had been identified and this line item was of low risk in the
2010 Audit. Analytical procedures were not properly carried out to identify
the risk of material misstatement relating to these prepayments.

The auditor also failed to verify the utilisation of these prepayments in
order to address the unusual nature of these prepayments identified
during the 2010 Audit (eg. these prepayments were not directly paid to
the suppliers). The additional audit evidence obtained was substantially
limited to management’s oral representations.

Prepayments to the major customer

The prepayments to the major customer at 30 June 2009 were a
significant line item and there were material movements in this item
between the years ended 30 June 2009 and 30 June 2010, which should
have given rise to a heightened awareness by the auditor as to its audit
significance. However, the auditor failed to properly perform the analytical
procedures and the risk assessment procedures to identify the risk of
material misstatement relating to these prepayments in the 2009 Audit
and the 2010 Audit.
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During the 2010 Audit, the auditor discovered unusual transactions in
relation to these prepayments. However, they failed to update and change
their original planning decision which did not identify any significant
risks. In addition, the auditor failed to test the reasonableness of the
amortisation of prepayments and the subsequent utilisation of the
prepayments in the 2009 Audit and the 2010 Audit.

Sales to the major customer

Planning

During the 2008 Audit, the 2009 Audit and the 2010 Audit, the auditor
failed to properly perform analytical procedures to identify the risk of
material misstatement relating to revenue, given the existence of certain
risk factors. The auditor continued to view the risk as low in the audit
approach.

Consideration of fraud in revenue recognition

The auditor failed to assess the presumed risks of fraud in revenue
recognition in the 2008 Audit, the 2009 Audit and the 2010 Audit.

Tests of controls

The auditor planned to rely on the controls over revenue recognition.
However, they failed to test whether the controls on the recognition of
sales of goods to the major customer were operating effectively during the
years ended 30 June 2008 and 2009.

In addition, the auditor had identified certain deviations in the application
of the internal controls in the 2010 Audit. However, they did not perform
any alternative audit procedures to address these deviations and failed to
evaluate how these deviations affected the risk assessment.

Substantive procedures

During the 2008 Audit, the 2009 Audit and the 2010 Audit, the auditor
failed to test the revenue recognition of the sales of goods to the major
customer and the related trade receivables, and properly perform the
analytical review as an overall review of the relevant financial statements
at the completion stage to identify the unusual sales transactions with the
major customer.

Conclusion
The above auditing irregularities and the investigation reports have been
referred to the HKICPA to determine any follow-up action.
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Impairment assessments and income recognition

Background

There were possible non-compliances with accounting requirements
in the listed entity’s consolidated financial statements. These possible
non-compliances related to impairment assessments of assets and the
accounting for certain sales and purchase transactions relating to trading
operations.

Issues

Whether the auditor had performed adequate audit procedures to obtain
sufficient appropriate audit evidence to support their unmodified audit
opinions on the financial statements.

Analysis
The investigation discovered the following auditing irregularities:

(@ Impairment assessments of intangible assets

The auditor placed reliance on external valuations as audit evidence
but failed to assess the reasonableness of the assumptions
and discount rate applied in the cash flows projection and the
appropriateness in allocating goodwill to relevant cash-generating
units for the purpose of impairment assessment.

(b) Impairment assessments of available-for-sale financial assets

The auditor only relied on unaudited financial information and
did not perform other procedures to obtain sufficient appropriate
audit evidence to ensure that the available-for-sale financial assets
were carried at their fair values and not impaired at the end of the
reporting period.

(¢) Impairment assessments of other receivables

The auditor failed to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence
to ascertain the status of the proposed investment and the
recoverability of the deposit paid.

(d) Impairment assessments of promissory notes

Subsidiaries of the listed entity held significant amounts of
promissory notes with identical terms. The auditor failed to evaluate
the related risks and any relationship with the issuers. The auditor
also did not adequately test the related cash flows and understand
the rationale of the transactions and any risk management policies
that had been applied.
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(A

(e) Sales and purchase transactions

The auditor did not evaluate whether the trading subsidiaries were
acting as agent or principal in the relevant transactions and failed
to consider whether recognising the gross amount of the relevant
transactions was compliant with the relevent accounting standard.
The auditor also failed to obtain adequate third party evidence to
corroborate the existence/genuineness of the relevant transactions.

Conclusion
The above auditing irregularities and the investigation reports have been
referred to the HKICPA to determine any follow-up action.

Reporting and auditing irregularities

Background

There were possible reporting and auditing irregularities in relation to
the audit of a listing applicant’s financial information as included in the
prospectus (the Financial Information) and the listed entity’s first set of
financial statements after listing (the Relevant Financial Statements).

Issues

Following the collapse of the company and accusations of fraudulent
behaviour within the company, there was a question as to whether the
reporting accountant/auditor had performed adequate procedures to
obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence on the Financial Information
and the Relevant Financial Statements particularly in respect of turnover,
operating costs and major assets.

Analysis
The investigation revealed that the reporting accountant/auditor including
the engagement leader failed to

(@ maintain a questioning mind in assessing the validity and/or reliability
of documents and other information obtained from management
that were used as audit evidence; and consider risks of material
misstatement due to fraud;

(b) adequately evaluate the reliability of confirmations received when
there were concerns as to the source of the responses;

(c) perform additional procedures to obtain adequate explanations and
appropriate corroborative evidence to dispel matters of concern
arising from results of company searches on customers and
suppliers and other audit procedures;

(d) design and perform appropriate audit procedures that are responsive
to their testing objectives and related audit assertions; and
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(e) prepare sufficient and appropriate audit documentation.

Conclusion
The above relevant irregularities and the investigation report have been
referred to the HKICPA to determine any appropriate follow-up action.

Multiple auditing irregularities

Background

There were possible non-compliances with accounting requirements in
a listed entity’s consolidated financial statements relating to a business
combination. These possible non-compliances related to (a) the fair
value measurement of the convertible bonds issued; (b) the recognition
and measurement of certain identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
assumed and the related goodwill at the acquisition date; and (c) the
impairment assessment of the relevant goodwill at the end of the reporting
period.

Issues
(1) A convertible bond issued as contingent consideration was not
accounted for as a financial liability.

(2)  Whether the auditor had performed adequate audit procedures
to identify the possible accounting errors and to challenge
management’s assumptions.

Analysis
The investigation uncovered the following auditing irregularities:

(@ In respect of the convertible bonds issued in a business
combination, the auditor failed to identify that part of the convertible
bonds were issued as contingent consideration and should be
accounted for as a financial liability. The auditor also failed to
perform procedures in respect of the initial and subsequent fair value
measurement of the convertible bonds.

(b) Inrespect of the recognition and measurement of identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed and the related goodwill at the date
of the acquisition, the auditor’s procedures were mainly limited to
relying on the acquiree’s accounts and their client’s management
representations. Adequate procedures should have been performed
to challenge the assumptions and accounting measurement
principles established by management.

(¢) In respect of the impairment assessment of the goodwill, the
auditor failed to challenge management on the appropriateness of
the measurement basis used in the valuations of different cash-
generating units in which goodwill was allocated in accordance with
the relevant accounting requirements.
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Conclusion
The above auditing irregularities and the investigation report have been
referred to the HKICPA to determine any appropriate follow-up action.

Using the work of experts

Background

The auditor engaged an independent valuer as an expert (the Auditor’s
Expert) to assist in evaluating the work of the management's experts to
value a mining right and a mining business. There was a possible auditing
irregularity in respect of the use of the work of the Auditor's Expert during
the audit.

Issues

Whether the auditor had appropriately followed the relevant auditing
standards in evaluating the work of the management’s experts and the
Auditor’s Expert.

Analysis
Using the work of the experts

There was no evidence indicating that a proper evaluation on the work of
the Auditor’s Expert was made by the auditor under Hong Kong Standard
on Auditing (HKSA) 620 Using the Work of an Auditor’s Expert.

The audit documentation indicated that in evaluating the management’s
experts, the auditor had applied HKSA 620. However, HKSA 620 deals
with the auditor's responsibilities relating to the work of an auditor’s
expert and consequently the work performed was inadequate in respect
of evaluating management’s experts whose work should have been
evaluated under HKSA 500 Audit Evidence.

Inconsistencies in audit evidence

The auditor stated that they were advised by the Auditor’s Expert as to the
expected value of the mining right and the mining business and that there
was no matter arising. However, this was inconsistent with the opinions
expressed by the Auditor’s Expert that no conclusion had been reached
on the reasonableness and acceptability of the valuations issued by the
management's experts. The auditor did not address this inconsistency.

Inadequate evaluation of significant assumptions and source data used in
valuations

The auditor failed to assess the relevance, reasonableness and
appropriateness of the key assumptions applied in the valuations.
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Insufficient audit documentation

The auditor failed to record the audit procedures performed in a
reconciliation between the estimated iron resources and the estimated
production of iron used in the valuations. This reconciliation was an
important piece of audit evidence which should have been documented
in the audit working papers.

Conclusion
The above auditing irregularities and the investigation report have been
referred to the HKICPA to determine any follow-up action.

Letters of Advice

When evaluating complaints the FRC may decide that while the complaint
does not warrant being taken further to an investigation or enquiry, it is
appropriate to issue a “letter of advice” as an educational reminder to the
company and the auditor so that the company’s financial reporting can be
improved in future and the auditor learns from our process. Examples of this
situation are:
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Example 1:

In its 20183 financial statements, in valuing the fair value of certain plots
of land in China, a listed company used a “direct comparison” method
whereby reference was made to land price indexes in China. However
the company disclosed in its financial statements that it had used the
“residual approach” method.

In its 2014 financial statements the company changed its valuation
method from the direct comparison method to the residual value method.
The company did not disclose the fact that a change in valuation method
had been made and also did not disclose the reason for the change.

The above are required disclosures and both the company and the auditor
were reminded of this.
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Example 2:

The directors of a listed company occupied the majority seats in the board
of a company in which the listed company held 50% equity interest. There
was a concern as to whether the investee should be accounted for as a
subsidiary instead of an associate of the listed company.

Based on the arrangements between the listed company and the other
shareholder of the investee, a number of business decisions, including
dividend policy, required both shareholders’ consent. Therefore, the listed
company did not have control over the investee. The investee should be
accounted for as a joint venture in accordance with HKFRS 11 as it is a
joint control arrangement.

In this case, the listed company was advised that it should classify the
investment as a joint venture in accordance with HKFRS 11.

Example 3:

BlF=":
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A listed company issued its financial statements under Chinese
Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises (“ASBEs”) and in doing
so failed to disclose adequate information about (i) the separation of
embedded derivatives from the host contract and (i) the nature of income
earned from its suppliers.

Both management and auditors of companies using ASBEs are reminded
that they need to observe the specific disclosure requirements of ASBEs

in finalising their financial statements.

Example 4:
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fBIFm :

Another listed company using ASBEs failed to disclose information about
the terms and conditions of certain financial investments. The company
was reminded to follow the disclosures in ASBE 22 in future.

Example 5:

E—RIEMASBEW LTREKEE T2RERE
MEZERMGN - ARREZARBRERS

ASBE 22 &3k -

¥ H :

One of the notes to the accountants’ report and the financial statements
disclosed that the trade receivables related to a wide range of customers.
However, another note to the accountants’ report and the financial
statements disclosed that over 90% of trade receivables were due from
the five largest customers. Inconsistent disclosures relating to trade
receivables were noted. A letter of advice was issued reminding the
company to have regard to such inconsistencies in future and, as such
information is important, to assist readers of the financial statements to
evaluate the relevant risks in trade receivables.
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Honorary Advisory Panel
ZEEEE

The Honorary Advisory Panel is established to assist the FRC in discharging its functions and
responsibilities arising from or in relation to the Financial Reporting Council Ordinance (Cap 588).
The function of the Honorary Advisors is to advise the FRC, including its committees and staff, with
respect to any matter referred to the Honorary Advisors by the FRC.

F BRI B AR B B2 BB 5 E S BB 1T A BEC B TS [E B 1R DI ) (55 588 ) R E M BRE R B AT -
ZEBERAEMEMAVFERRENNER  AMGERR(BREZEGRET)RHEER -

Panel Members During 2016
2016 FRARIEARE

Mr Nicholas Allen
EHMmELE

Mr Allen is a former partner of PricewaterhouseCoopers in
Hong Kong; and currently acts as the Chairman of Link Asset
Management Limited; an Independent Non-Executive director of
Lenovo Group Limited; and CLP Holdings Limited.

BERMEERTETBERBKEGHMEHMEABA  HAAR
BEEEERERARIE  URBEEEEFRIRAMFEZRAR
REIRBIIEHTES ©

Mr Clement Chan
FREBEESEE

Mr Chan is the Managing Director — Assurance of BDO Limited and
is a former president of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (HKICPA). He has actively participated in standard
setting and governance activities of the Institute.

REEABELERREMEBMER AR EFAFESAL
B AR R EREHMARER  LRB2EAGHHEE
ARERES °
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Mr Roger Best, JP
BomELE - R

Mr Best was a partner of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu and is a
former president of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (HKICPA). He has chaired the HKICPA Financial
Reporting Standards Committee and has also been a member of
the IFRS Advisory Council.

BOPREEBERY - WERTEHMTNEBA  LERAE
BEFMASER  DETHMBREENZESEE  TEE
BIRE RS ERIEREZEGMKE -

Dr Moses Cheng, GBM,
GBS, OBE, JP
MEEEL AKRHAFHE-
EEAEE AFEHELEHE
R4t

Dr Cheng is currently the Chairman of the Independent Insurance
Authority. He is also a consultant of PC Woo & Co. after serving
as its Senior Partner for 21 years. He has extensive experience in
listing matters.
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Mr Chew Fook Aun
BRREE

Mr Chew has over 30 years of experience in accounting, auditing
and finance in the United Kingdom and Hong Kong. He is currently
the deputy chairman and executive director of Lai Sun Garment
(International) Limited and Lai Sun Development Company
Limited, the executive director of eSun Holdings Limited, and the
chairman and executive director of Lai Fung Holdings Limited.
ALREERBMEEEFANFHES Bt hemgsn B
RETHARBEERAGDREFERARA AN EFERANTE
= UEBITRARAANATEETRBEERERATNER
FHPITES o

Dr PM Kam
HiExE L

Dr Kam is a certified public accountant. He is a former CEO of the
FRC. Prior to joining the FRC, he was the group financial controller
of Jardine Matheson Limited.

HELR —BETA o b B EMBERBHOITEAE - KINA
BERBDZA - thBERNERBRAREENFEE -

Mr Anders Lau
2BEREE

Mr Lau is a certified public accountant. He was a partner with
Emst & Young since 1997 and retired in June 2016.
BIRER—BGER bR 1997 FIR AL KB BBHNAE R
A+ B20164 6 A 30 HRIK °

Mr Eugene Fung, SC
IBRETEEE » EIRAER

Mr Fung is a barrister in private practice. He is experienced in
the fields of commercial law, trusts and probate, tax, property
litigation, and company and insolvency law.

BEER—BTLARKRRKEE - hEBFL - 5705 - ER
R WL MEFD - ARARVERBEEZAARGEELK

Mr Edward Kwan, MH
BEELE  REHE

Mr Kwan was formerly the chief executive officer of HSBC Broking
Services (Asia) Limited

FEESEES SRS (M) R A RITEAEE

Mr Albert Li
TEESE

Mr Li was formerly a partner of KPMG Hong Kong and his main
responsibilities were technical advisory and audit.
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Dr Eric Li, GBS, JP
EREEL  ERFEE
RFwt

Dr Li is a senior partner of Li, Tang, Chen & Co, Certified Public
Accountants and an independent non-executive director of a
number of listed companies in Hong Kong. He is also a member
of the 12th National Committee of the Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference.

FEIRTZRSTMEBEEEEA  TRBEZRKETA
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Ms Teresa Ma
BEEHzt

Ms Ma is an experienced lawyer and a mediator. She was a
partner and a member of the International Board of Linklaters.

BRELRAREMEAAFFEE - B RFMERMEBHANE
BAREBEREAEKE °

Mr Kenneth Morrison
XEBEEE

Mr Morrison is a Practicing Director of Mazars Hong Kong. He
has served on several committees of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (HKICPA) including Accounting
Standards, Practice Review and Ethics. Mr Morrison is also a
council member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
Scotland (ICAS).

XEEEAERERESIMEBMEENXES - L2 HS A
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Mr Tim Lui, BBS, JP
BARLE  HEMES - KF
e

Mr Lui is a senior advisor of PwC Hong Kong and a deputy of The
National People’s Congress of the People’s Republic of China.
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Mr Stephen Mercer

Mr Mercer is a partner with KPMG in Hong Kong.
EHBEEEREFTREEABA

Mr Michael Scales
MRS e

Mr Scales was previously Corporation Secretary of The Hongkong
and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited. He also served as a
member of the Standing Committee on Company Law Reform,
SFC Share Registrars Disciplinary Committee and SFC Dual Filing
Advisory Group.
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Mr John E Strickland,
GBS, JP'

EfEwmiLE  EEFES -
APt

Mr Strickland is a former chairman of Octopus Holdings Limited
and the non-executive director of Esquel Holdings Inc. He has and
continues to be a director or council member or trustee of a range
of not-for-profit organizations.

Hefam ot 4 SR/ EBIZR AR QAL © A Esquel Holdings
go#iﬂﬁ%% CMREFIFAFIRBNES EREKEHE

Mr Paul F. Winkelmann?
BRI E?

Mr Winkelmann has rich experience in the accounting profession.
He was the partner-in-charge of PricewaterhouseCoopers’
Risk Management and Quality team in Greater China and is a
former president of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (HKICPA).

FHEREERMBERBITEHAR - hESHEXE T EALEN
&5 M BERERKEGHMESMATERAREERE X
WEEEBA  URAIBEGTMAGTER -

Term expired on 14 January 2017.
Resigned with effect from 31 March 2016 on being appointed as CEO.

Mr Clement Kwok
SR SEE

Mr Kwok is the Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer of
the Hongkong and Shanghai Hotels, Limited. He has served on the
Stock Exchange Listing Committee, the Takeovers and Mergers
Panel, the Securities and Futures Appeals Tribunal, the Hang Seng
Index Advisory Committee and the Harbourfront Commission,
as well as the Interpretations Committee of the International
Accounting Standards Board in London.

BEERBBLBNBEERDIR 2 EEREIRRITHAEE - 1t
BEBIANETRES KBRaHERES EFRHEEK
LRBHE EEEBEREZES  BAFHKEEE  URUR
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Mr Stephen Taylor
Stephen Taylor 5t

Mr Taylor is senior partner in national audit and assurance
technical department of Deloitte China and head of the Deloitte
Asia Pacific IFRS centre of excellence based in Hong Kong.
He is currently chairman of The Hong Kong Stock Exchange
Listing Committee and a member of the International Accounting
Standards Board IFRS Advisory Council.
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REBA - RS FERE D ARBEE M BREER EHPOEER
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Mr Huen Wong, BBS, JP
FHELEE  HEFMEEZ AT
wmt

Mr Wong is the Principal of Fried Frank, Hong Kong and Shanghai

offices. Mr Wong is currently the President of the Inter-Pacific Bar

Association and a former president of the Law Society of Hong

Kong.
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Panel Members Appointed with Effect from 15 January 2017
R2017F1 A15 HEZENERBERE

Mr David Wu

p- - \h SEBRE

Mr Wu is the Government and Regulatory Affairs Leader of PwC
China. He has in-depth understanding of China’s economic
and regulatory landscape, as well as the latest developments in
China’s accounting profession.
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Financial Reporting Review Panel

Panel Convenors

Mr Eugene Fung, SC '
Mr Robert Gazzi

Dr PM Kam '

Mr Carmelo Lee, JP '

Mr Andrew Mak, BBS, JP
Ms Catherine Morley

Ms Edith Shih

Dr Kelvin Wong, JP 2
Prof Wong Tak Jun

Members

Mr Jamie Allen 2

Prof Gary Biddle

Mr Edmund Chan

Prof Cheng Cheng Shing
Prof Peter Cheng

Ms Yvonne Cheng, SC
Mr Ambrose Cheung, BBS, MH, JP
Ms vy Cheung

Mr Cheung Kwan Hoi
Mr Jeckle Chiu

Mr Mohan Datwani

Ms Ding Chen

Mr lan Farrar

Ms Cindy Fu 2

Mr Tommy Fung

Mr Paul Hebditch

Ms Joan Ho

Mr Carlyon Knight-Evans '
Ms Kelly Kong

Mr Nelson Lam

Ms Rosita Lee

Mr Lee Yin-toa '

Ms Cynthia Lim

Mr William Lim

Mr Roy Lo

Dr Guy Look

Mr Bernard Mak

Ms Agnes Nardi

Mr Hong Ng

Mr Paul Phenix

Mr Paul Shieh, SC

Mr Hamilton Tang

Ms Teo Chew Ping

Mr Tsui Hon Man

Ms Anna Wong

Mr Wong Kim Man

Ms Priscilla Wong, BBS, JP
Mr Stephen Wong
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Mr Thomas Wong

Ms Wendy Yuen

Ms Wendy Yung

Prof Zhang Guo Chang

! Appointed with effect from 16 July 2016.
2 Term expired on 15 July 2016.

Audit Investigation Board during 2016
Chairman

Mr Paul F. Winkelmann (ex-officio)

Members

Mr TS Chan

Ms Wincey Lam
Ms Anna Lau

Ms Florence Wong
Ms Joyce Woo

Process Review Panel
Chairman
Mr Anthony Chow, SBS, JP

Members

Ms Florence Chan

Mr Vincent Kwan

Prof Low Chee Keong

Mr Tse Kam Keung

Dr John Poon, BBS, JP (ex-officio)
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
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Financial Reporting Council
29" Floor, High Block

Queensway Government Offices

66 Queensway, Hong Kong

B 75 BB 3R fB

BB REB 665
SEBRNAESE2E

Tel Eit ¢ (852) 2810 6321
Fax 1§ & ¢ (852) 2810 6320
Email & © general@frc.org.hk

Website 841 © www.frc.org.hk
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